Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
30 March 2017, 7.30 pm at the
Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton SM1 1EA



To all members of the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair:
Councillors:

Councillor Jill Whitehead
Councillor Manuel Abellan
Adrian Davey, Richard Marston, Steve Penneck, Nighat Piracha,
Paul Wingfield, Hanna Zuchowska, Patrick McManus and
Tony Shields
Councillor Ruth Dombey (ex-Officio)

Substitutes:

Councillors Jean Crossby, Joyce Melican, Jason Reynolds,
Tim Crowley and Neil Garratt

This is a Council meeting held in public. Additional representations are at the invitation
of the Chair of the Committee. If you are a relevant organisation and you wish to
submit representations on a proposal contained within the reports to this agenda
please submit a request via Committee Services three working days before the
meeting date.
Members of the public also have a statutory entitlement to record meetings to which
they are admitted, subject to it not disrupting the meeting. They should record only
the meeting and not the audience. Anyone proposing to make a recording must
inform the Committee Services contact below before the meeting. Mobile devices can
interfere with the wireless microphones and induction loop, and if that is the case the
Chair may require that such devices are turned off.
This meeting will be recorded and made available on the Council’s website.
PLEASE NOTE: Any decision taken at this meeting does not become definitive until
10am on the third working day after the meeting. Any four members of the Council
may notify the Chief Executive by then if they require a decision to be reviewed by the
appropriate committee at its next meeting. Please contact the Committee Services
representative shown on the front page for further information.
Niall Bolger
Chief Executive
Friday, 17 March 2017

Enquiries to: Davena Palmer, Committee Services Tel: 020 8770 4990 Email:
committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

AGENDA

1.

Welcome and introductions

2.

Apologies for absence and notifications of substitutes

3.

Minutes of last meeting

1-4

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 26
January 2017.
4.

Declarations of interests

5.

Petition: New Waste Recycling
Report to follow

6.

Petition: Hackbridge Railway Bridge

7.

Joint Heritage Lottery Fund Bids

Report to follow
5 - 16

This report sets out the issues, changes and progress of the following
projects: Beddington Park HLF, Whitehall HLF, Nature Explorers and
Glass Plate Negatives.

8.

Volunteer Pilot - Libraries

17 - 22

This report sets out the progress made since September 2016 and way
forward for the volunteer pilot which is being conducted at Cheam and
Circle libraries, in partnership with Volunteer Centre Sutton.

9.

Cross-Over Policy

23 - 58

This report provides an update on the review by the Kingston and Sutton
Shared Highways and Transport Service of the Vehicle Crossover Policy
for both authorities, with a view to introducing consistent procedures and
process for dealing with applications and seeks approval to proceed as
detailed in the recommendations.
10.

New Highways Contract

59 - 76

This report provides an update on the re-procurement of Sutton’s
highways and street lighting works term contracts and seeks approval to
proceed as detailed in the recommendations.

2

11.

Review of the new Shared Environment Services

77 - 108

This report presents the outcome of the Shared Environment Service
(SES) review. It highlights a number of notable successes from the SES
first year of operation and recommends a future service development
focus to assist the SES achieve its full potential.
12.

LIP Allocation

109 - 132

This report outlines Transport for London’s (TfL’s) allocation to the
Council of Local Implementation Plan (LIP) funding for 2017/18.
13.

Sutton Planned Maintenance Programme 2017-2018
This report outlines Sutton's Planned Maintenance Programme for 20172018.

14.
15.

Any urgent items brought forward at the direction of the chair
Date of next meeting
The next meeting of the Environment and neighbourhood Committee is
the 22 June 2017.

3

133 - 144

This page is intentionally left blank

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound. Leave the building
immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the fire exit
into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the car
park in front of the Holiday Inn.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1

Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Entrance
Lower Square

Exit

Holiday Inn
Car Park

Reminder – Declarations of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’
Interests or to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this
meeting that you have such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber
where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that
interest at this meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the
meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at
this meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on
the matter. However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you should declare the
interest and withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct
and Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you
should seek advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an
interest you should always declare it.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
26 January 2017

ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOOD COMMITTEE
26 January 2017 at 7.30 pm
MEMBERS:
(*Absent)

21.

Councillor Jill Whitehead (Chair), Councillor Nighat Piracha (Vice
Chair) and Councillors Manuel Abellan, Adrian Davey, Richard
Marston, Patrick McManus, Steve Penneck, Tony Shields, Paul
Wingfield and Hanna Zuchowska.
Councillor Ruth Dombey (ex-officio).

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

The Chair welcomed all those there present.
22.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATIONS OF SUBSTITUTES

No apologies were received.
23.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest.
24.

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

An amendment was proposed to the minutes of the last Meeting. Agenda item 19 at
2.1, points a) to c), it was noted that Councillors Shields and McManus voted against
the recommendation.
RESOLVED: that the minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2016 were
agreed and signed as an accurate record, subject to the amendment.
25.

PETITION: SAVE SUTTON'S THEATRES

The lead petitioner was unable to attend the meeting and gave his apologies. The
Chair, Councillor Jill Whitehead read out a brief statement from the lead petitioner at
his request. The statement referred to discontent at the theatre closures and said
that many local residents valued the venues highly. Residents felt that the theatres
improved and enriched local people's lives.
The Chair invited Jan Underhill, Executive Head of Wellbeing, to comment on the
petition. She pointed out that the decision that the Council could not continue to run
the theatres was taken at Environment and Neighbourhood Committee meeting of 4
September 2014, and after a full public consultation. The Council had therefore gone
out to the market on two occasions, the last occasion being to seek expressions of
interest for the commercial leases of the vacant theatre buildings. Unfortunately, the
six expressions of interest received from local organisations had generated no

1

Agenda Item 3

Page 2

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
26 January 2017

viable, sustainable bids for the leases. She added that the Council is, however,
currently exploring the plans put forward by some of the bidders in more detail. The
Chair reminded the Committee that the Council is still under pressure to reach
considerable savings targets, and has no legal obligation to provide theatres.
Members thanked the petitioners for their expression of support for the theatres. A
failure to attract audiences and a lack of financial sustainability were given as
reasons behind the recent closure of Sutton Theatres Trust. Members underlined the
point that any new proposal needed to cover maintenance and repair costs in
addition to means of income generation.
One member questioned why the fittings at the Charles Cryer Theatre had been
sold. The Executive Head of Wellbeing explained that when the Sutton Theatre Trust
took over the theatre, equipment essential to running a theatre was transferred to
them. When the Trust went into administration the equipment was in their ownership
and subsequently put on sale.
The Executive Head of Wellbeing informed the committee that the process of the
transfer of the theatres and equipment to the Sutton Theatre Trust had been handled
by Environment and Neighbourhoods and Asset Management (Resource
Directorate).
RESOLVED: that
2.1

The petition was considered and the appropriate course of action be
determined as set out in the options section of the report.

26.
REVIEW OF ENVIRONMENT, HOUSING AND REGENERATION FEES
AND CHARGES FOR 2017/18.
Scott Funnell, Head of Environment Commissioning, presented the report.
Following the presentation, Members questioned how the Council compared with
other boroughs in relation to burial charges. Officers confirmed that the Council is
competitive and charges were slightly lower than Merton and Croydon Councils.
Members also enquired as to how many licences the Council had issued for
performing animals and zoos. Warren Shadbolt, Executive Head of Safer and
Stronger Communities, confirmed the council has to publish all licences issued and
would confirm any specific number after the meeting.
Members asked why the Council was incurring increased costs in postage relating to
the new European passport return service. Officers confirmed that this was because
there was still a legal need to send physical copies to applicants.
With regards to Shared Highways and Transport charges, Members asked how
prices in Sutton compared to Kingston. Officers confirmed they would confirm
comparative prices after discussions with Kingston Council.
One member commented that their Local Committee allocated funds to Little League
football, yet the report detailed increased charges for the Little League pitches.
Officers confirmed that the Environment, Housing and Regeneration service needed
to ensure fees and charges covered the costs to maintain local pitches, adding that it
is at the discretion of each Local Committee as to whether or not to subsidise.

2

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
26 January 2017

RESOLVED: that
3.1

The increased charges for the following services be approved- Commercial
Waste, Bulky Waste, Parks (including Biodiversity), Cemeteries, Highways
and Transport, Regulatory Services, Sports and Leisure Management,
Registration Service, Libraries, as set out in Appendices A - J, and the Life
Centre.

In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.4 Councillor McManus requested that his
abstention from the vote be recorded.
27.

ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOODS PERFORMANCE REPORT

Scott Funnell, Head of Environment Commissioning presented the report showing
performance and financial data via the Council’s performance management system
(Covalent). Members were reminded that this was the second time the performance
report had been presented to the Committee.
From the indicators, Members discussed the percentage of household waste sent for
refuse, recycling and composting and the predicted impact of the new waste
arrangements. The target of 40% was reached in the summer yet there was a
decline in winter. It was confirmed by officers that the figures shown were for a
specific month only, and 40 percent was the average for the year. The recycling
targets would be reviewed after the first year of the new waste collection contract
which would be starting in April. Members suggested adjusting the Covalent figures
to smooth monthly seasonal changes in winter (which reflected Christmas
collections), and which would show the results for the year to date, or on a quarterly
basis, rather than for one month, which Officers agreed to explore.
Members asked if there was any recovery plan for red and amber indicators, and
whether this information could be included on the dashboard. Officers responded
that under “Household waste sent for refuse, recycling and composting”, for
example, the introduction of food waste under the new Waste Contract in April forms
part of the recovery plan, and further notes were already available on dashboard.
Members also considered indicators relating to missed-bin collections as well as
library and heritage performance. Members again commented that it would be useful
to have the information given with year-to-date figures.
The Chair then invited members to share any suggestions relating to the key
performance indicators. Members requested data concerning the Indigo Parking
contract where the key performance indicator would be the number of parking tickets
issued, and the numbers where an appeal was made to the Parking Appeals
Tribunal. Officers agreed to examine data already available and comment at a future
committee. Members were also in agreement that parking would be a good issue to
discuss at a future committee as an important issue to residents.
Members suggested that future meetings on this item could focus on particular
themes which would allow members to review the relevant indicators and work
through the areas of service.
Finally, Members enquired as to whether outside contractors such as for the new
SLWP contracts could be invited to the Committee in future to review performance.
Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and Regeneration,
responded positively and agreed to propose future themes for the Chair’s
consideration.
Members commented that the Covalent data was very easy to view and use, and
thanked officers from the Environment, Housing & Regeneration directorate.

3

Page 4

Agenda Item 3

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
26 January 2017

RESOLVED: that:
2.1

28.

The performance dashboard was considered and commented upon.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held on 30 March 2017 at 7:30pm in the Civic Offices.

The meeting ended at 8.20 pm
Chair:
Date:

4

Page 5

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Item 7

Page 6

Page 7

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Item 7

Page 8

Page 9

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Item 7

Page 10

Page 11

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Item 7

Page 12

Page 13

Agenda Item 7

Appendix A

Beddington Park Project

Activity
Final design for consideration and comment by HLF

Date
December 2015

Application for second round funding HLF Parks for
People fund
Decision from HLF
Sutton and HLF Contract formalities
Re-engagement of consultant’s team
Capital works detailed design

End of February 2016

Tender preparation, tender period and evaluation.
Pre construction, mobilisation, method statements
etc.
Works on site
Completion of physical works
Commencement of management and maintenance
plan

June 2016
June – July 2016
July 2016
August 2016 – March
2017
March - April 2017
May - 2017
January 2017 – May
2018
June 2018
June 2018

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 15

Agenda Item 7

Appendix B

Whitehall Project

Activity
Round two application submitted

Date
March 2015

Decision from HLF
Permission to start
Detailed design

June 2015
September 2015
October 2015-April
2016
April 16
May -June 2016

Whitehall closed to the public
Tendering process revealed the need for additional
funding
Work with HLF to mitigate the budget
Formal application for additional funding to HLF
Decision from HLF
Permission to start
Pre construction, mobilisation, method statements etc.
Works on site
Exhibition build and install
Museum fit out and previews
Open to the public

June – August 2016
September 2016
December 2016
January 2017
January 2017
January 2017 –
December 2017
January - April 2018
May 2018
June 2018

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 17

Agenda Item 8

Report to:

Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee

Report title:

Libraries Volunteer Pilot

Report from:

Tolis Vouyioukas - Strategic Director, People Directorate

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Councillor Jill Whitehead

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Date:

30 March 2017

Jan Underhill, Executive Head of Wellbeing, 020 8770 4359
● An Open Council
● A Fair Council
● A Smart Council
Open
Date:

14 March 2017

1.

Summary

1.1

This report sets out the progress made since September 2016 and way forward for the
volunteer pilot which is being conducted at Cheam and Circle libraries, in partnership with
Volunteer Centre Sutton.

2.

Recommendations
The Environment and Neighbourhood Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Note the rate of progress made with the recruitment of volunteers and development of the
volunteer role at Cheam and Circle libraries, through the pilot

2.2

Note the additional, continued development of a range of opportunities for volunteering across
the Libraries, Heritage and Arts Service

3.

Background

3.1

As part of the overall review of Sutton’s Library Service a public consultation on the future of the
library service was carried out in the autumn of 2015. A clear message from those who took part
in the consultation was that there should be more use of volunteers and more community
involvement to support modernisation and add value to the work of paid library staff. It should be
noted that the recruitment of volunteers is part of usual business within Sutton Libraries,
Heritage and Arts services and staff working within the service will continue to recruit volunteers
in the future. However, in order to devote more time to attracting volunteers and to look new
ways in which the service offer might be enhanced by working with volunteers, Members agreed

Agenda Item 8

Page 18

that a volunteer pilot project should be set up. Circle and Cheam libraries were selected and the
pilot was established in partnership with Volunteer Centre Sutton (VCS). These libraries were
chosen due to the different local demographics and patterns of use at the libraries. The pilot was
to be set up in the autumn of 2016 and to run for one year. At the end of the pilot, the results
would be analysed and if the outcomes were positive, consideration would be given to rolling out
the initiative across all sites. This report contains interim findings and progress made with the
pilot, for agreement by Members. Committee is also asked to note the continuing development
in the design of volunteer roles and their deployment across the whole of Libraries, Heritage and
Arts services. In addition, a post of Volunteer Manager has been established within the new
Libraries, Heritage and Arts staff structure, to ensure that volunteering continues in order to
enhance the service offer across the Borough.
3.2. Volunteer Centre Sutton was commissioned to work with the libraries Development Manager and
branch library managers to develop roles and to recruit volunteers as part of a volunteer pilot. A
set of success criteria were agreed with Volunteer Centre Sutton (VCS) at the outset, in
September 2016. As well as recruiting volunteers, VCS advised on and delivered staff training.
Priority roles were identified that the library managers considered would add value to the
services being delivered from the branches, for example Rhyme Time, homework help club, job
club support and a reading group for children aged 8-10 years. Highlights from the pilot to date
can be found at Appendix A of this report.
3.3. The volunteer centre drew up a performance framework outlining good practice in recruitment,
induction and retention of volunteers and staff training sessions, devised for managing
volunteers. The first of these was delivered in January 2017.
3.4

Various methods of recruitment are being utilised and these will be evaluated for their
effectiveness throughout the pilot period. These include using the VCS online recruitment
platform, LB Sutton website, outreach in the community, open days, social media and hard copy
postcards, and posters. Library managers were trained to use the online platform and manage
the recruitment interface once a potential volunteer applies. VCS staff contacted 28 local venues
to promote the pilot and held open days and reported that local businesses and groups were
supportive of the initiative. Initial volunteers have been recruited and this approach will be
developed to continue to grow volunteer opportunities for the service.

4.

Issues

4.1

Currently the service is not paying expenses and this has been an issue for some potential
volunteers.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

Options were considered as part of the public consultation in autumn 2015 and a pilot project
was subsequently agreed by Members.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

A cost benefit analysis will be undertaken to enable a decision to be taken on the provision of
volunteer expenses.

Page 19

Agenda Item 8

Legal
6.2

There are no legal implications

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Interim highlights from the pilot

Background documents
N/A

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 14 March 2017

Consultation with other officers
Finance

No

N/A

Legal

No

N/A

Equality Impact Assessment

Yes

Completed as part of
library service review
and consultation

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 21

Agenda Item 8

Appendix A
Pilot highlights and methodology

Roles
Meetings were held with staff at the chosen libraries, ie Cheam and Circle Libraries and
roles identified. These included volunteers for baby rhyme time, homework help,
conversation groups, reading groups for children and job clubs.
Recruitment
Volunteer Centre Sutton worked with staff to agree a consistent way of supporting and
valuing volunteers to ensure they have a good experience to help with both retention and
word of mouth recruitment. A framework was agreed to ensure consistency of approach to
recruitment, retention and problem resolution.
The initial brief was to recruit 15-20 volunteers over the life of the pilot. A number of means
are being used for active recruitment and these will be monitored and evaluated for
effectiveness as the pilot continues. To date 4 volunteers have been recruited and active
recruitment will continue throughout the life of the pilot to achieve the expected outcome of
15-20.
●
●
●
●
●
●

Using VC Sutton online recruitment platform Volunteer Connect
LBS Libraries website
Outreach in the areas around Cheam Library and Circle Library
A recruitment open day would be held in each Library
Posters and postcards would be designed to promote the pilot and open day
Social media platforms, Facebook and Twitter would promote both as well

Staff training
A one day course was developed and the first session was delivered in January 2017.
Feedback was excellent - “Very good training supplied by the Volunteer Centre. The trainer
was extremely knowledgeable and told us a lot of useful information”. “The trainer was clear
and concise and the made the training day interesting.” “I realised the importance of having
formalised procedures across the whole service so that volunteers are treated equally and
fairly”. “The course was delivered at a good pace and the tutor was very knowledgeable and
helpful".
Interim outcomes
Library staff report that they have valued the support and expertise of the Volunteer Centre
Procedures and frameworks are being put in place to ensure a consistent approach to
volunteering across the service
New volunteers are being recruited
The postcards are still being picked up by potential volunteers and have resulted in at least
one new recruit who reports that not only is she supporting the library service but she is

Agenda Item 8

Page 22

Appendix A
already feeling the benefit herself, feels more confident and “more like I am in work and on
the right track”.
Libraries are able to access support for a variety of roles such as baby rhyme time and
homework help clubs
Some barriers to recruitment do exist such as lack of expenses and this will continue to be
appraised throughout the life of the pilot.
Volunteers have always been a much valued part of the library and heritage service and key
to successful projects such as the past on glass, the Worcester Park coding club and
generally adding value to the services. The service continues to recruit a variety of
volunteers alongside the pilot and now has a dedicated Volunteer Officer to ensure we grow
the volunteer presence and develop those volunteers to work along with our staff.

Page 23

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 9

Environment & Neighbourhood
Committee
Review of Vehicle Crossover Policy

Date:


30 March
2017

Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director of Environment, Housing &
Regeneration
Borough-wide
Councillor Jill Whitehead
Mehmet Mazhar, Strategic Management Support, Shared Highways &
Transport Service, 020 8547 5943
● An Open Council
● A Green Council
Open
Date:

16 March 2017

1.

Summary

1.1

This report provides an update on the review by the Kingston and Sutton Shared Highways and
Transport Service of the Vehicle Crossover Policy for both authorities, with a view to introducing
consistent procedures and process across both authorities for dealing with applications and
seeks approval to proceed as detailed in the recommendations.

2.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Environment & Neighbourhood Committee:

2.1

Notes the progress made on the review of Sutton Council’s Vehicle Crossover Policy by the
Shared Highways and Transport Service.

2.2

Approves the adoption of the new Sutton Council Vehicle Crossover Policy, as detailed in
Appendix A of this report, which is to commence from the 1 October 2017.

3.

Background

3.1

A dropped kerb and driveway across a footway is referred to as a ‘crossover’ allowing vehicles

Agenda Item 9

Page 24

to pass between the public highway and property/land to which the application relates. All
vehicle crossovers on the public highway require permission from the Highway Authority (i.e.
Sutton Council in this case) using powers in Section 184 (11) of the Highways Act 1980.
3.2

Currently residents, businesses and developers can routinely apply for a vehicle crossover.
Depending on their particular circumstances they may also require separate planning
permission under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, prior to submitting their application
under the Highways Act 1980. For householder/residential applications, alterations to front
gardens for the purposes of enabling off-street parking will in many cases fall within the terms of
‘permitted development’, in which case prior planning approval is not required. This report deals
with the highways application process only. (Further information regarding planning permission
can be found on the Government’s Planning Portal, (at https://www.planningportal.co.uk).

3.3

The number of applications received by the Council has been increasing steadily over time.
Currently, approximately 400 applications are processed annually. This increased demand is
believed to be largely due to increased car ownership and the pressure this has created on the
limited available on-street parking spaces.

3.4

The costs to the customer are made up of two parts. The first part is an administration fee for
assessing the application, which is currently £80, and the second part is the actual civil
engineering costs of constructing the crossover. The construction costs are estimated by the
assessing officer using competitively tendered contract rates provided by our term highways
works contractor. This cost is entirely borne by the applicant.

3.5

In Sutton the Vehicle Crossover Policy was last reviewed over 10 years ago and is not
considered to be ‘fit for purpose’, as complaints from disgruntled applicants who have been
refused permission are regularly received challenging the basis of highway officer decisions.

3.6

In order to overcome this issue and to remove any perceived ambiguities/inconsistencies in the
evaluation criteria used to assess applications, this report establishes a new policy, procedures
and a more comprehensive process for dealing with applications.
Proposed Vehicular Crossover Policy and Process

3.7

Subject to this Committee’s approval it is proposed that the new policy, once adopted, will come
into operational effect on the 1 October 2017 to align with the proposed commencement of the
new highways works contracts, tying in with new contract price schedules that will come into
effect at that time. This timeframe will also allow for the development and introduction of back
office procedures for dealing with applications under the new policy and will also provide for a
managed transition between old and new policies.

3.8

It is proposed that the applications will be paper application form, which can be submitted by
hand, post, or via email with a scanned copy. Applicants are encouraged to accompany their
application with a dimensioned plan (preferably to scale) outlining their proposal. This should

Page 25

Agenda Item 9

show the location, and size proposed for the crossover. An appropriate application fee should
accompany the application.
3.9

Applications for vehicle crossover proposals that have already been refused planning
permission will not be accepted. Where planning permission is needed applicants will be
required to make a planning application under the planning legislation and only when planning
permission has been granted would an application for highways consent be accepted. The new
policy and application pack appended to this report (Appendix 1) includes a checklist to assist
applicants in this regard.

3.10 Applications for a vehicle crossover will be considered against the detailed criteria and minimum
standards to be met as outlined in the new policy. These criteria are listed below:
●
●

●

●
●

●

●

●

Opening Width at Back of the Footway - A proposed vehicle crossover must have an
opening size at the back of the footway of minimum width, 2.7m and maximum of 4.0m.
Minimum Off-Street Parking Area - A proposed vehicle crossover must have a
minimum off-street parking area, measured perpendicular to the highway, of 4.8m long
by 2.7m wide, (2.7m being made up of 2.4m plus 0.3m on the driver’s side), except
where the proposed off-street parking area fronts a garage. No ‘short frontage’
agreements will be entered into.
Visibility Requirements - A proposed vehicle crossover must be able to provide a safe
zone of good visibility for drivers entering and leaving the site in order to ensure
pedestrian safety, in particular child pedestrians. The safe zone area must be 2.8m from
the back of the footway boundary line and measure 3.3m along the same boundary in
each direction. From this position, the driver must also have a clear view of anything
over 600mm in height from their driving position. On roads with a bend with restricted
visibility, minimum distance requirements, as detailed in the new policy must be met
Junctions - A proposed vehicle crossover must not be within 10m from a junction (15m
in the case of junctions on classified roads, A, B or C).
Proximity to Bus Stops and Pedestrian Crossings –
 A proposed vehicle crossover
must not be within 10m of any formal pedestrian crossing or refuge (including zebra
crossings and traffic signalled crossings such as pelicans and toucans), bus stop, or a
‘bus cage’ road marking. Additionally it must not encroach into or affect any zig-zag road
markings.
Trees – A proposed vehicle crossover must not result in the need to remove a highway
tree. No construction will be permitted within the root protection area (RPA) of a highway
tree in accordance with BS 5837:2012. Additionally, no crossover will be permitted within
a distance of 1 metre from the nearest edge of the trunk of a tree.
Grass Verges – A proposed vehicle crossover must not result in the removal of a grass
verge that is greater than 2 metres deep (1.6m in Conservation Areas and Local areas of
Special Character), measured perpendicular to the road.
Traffic Calming Features (e.g. speed humps, tables, cushions etc.) – A vehicle
crossover is not permitted where a vehicle cannot adequately clear a horizontal, or
vertical traffic calming feature on entry or exit from the site.

Agenda Item 9

●

●

●

●

●

Page 26

Conflict with Street Furniture/Highway Assets –
 If a proposed vehicle crossover
impacts on existing street furniture, including statutory undertakers plant/equipment, and
any alteration/relocation works become necessary and are possible, the costs will be
wholly at the expense of the applicant. A vehicle crossover may not be permitted closer
than 1 metre to any street furniture such as a lamp column or road sign.
Traffic Management Orders – A proposed vehicle crossing must not result in the need
to amend an existing Traffic Management Order (TMO), for example the removal or
amendment of yellow lines or designated parking areas, including paid for and permit
parking bays.
Advisory White Access Bar Markings – If requested by an applicant, an advisory
white access bar marking across the front of the crossover will be considered, but will
not be provided in areas subject to parking restrictions/controls, including in Permit
Parking Areas.
Drainage – The proposed off-street parking area must be constructed using sustainable
drainage (SuDS) principles and it must be ensured that surface water runoff does not
drain onto the public highway.
Fees and Charges – The new vehicle crossover application fee has been set at £100.
This will be reviewed annually as with all fees and charges as part of the budget setting
process. Blue Badge holder applicants are eligible for a £100 discount, which will be
deducted from the final construction cost for approved applications.

3.11 The main differences between the existing and the current proposed scheme relate to minimum
standards that must be met for an application to be approved, such as the minimum size of the
‘off-street parking area criteria’ and a greater emphasis on the consideration of factors affecting
highway safety and access, particularly for pedestrians, especially the young, elderly, disabled
and infirm.
3.13 The other differences are that the existing scheme under certain circumstances allows highway
trees to be removed, or TMO’s to be amended. Under the proposed policy neither of these will
be permitted.
4.

Other Options Considered

4.1

Under the current procedure the construction of approved vehicle crossovers is carried out by
the Council’s own appointed specialist highways works term contractor. In order to introduce
efficiencies, improve customer choice and move towards becoming an ‘enabling Council’, the
option to create a select list of approved contractors that the applicant could choose from, and
negotiate a price with, to construct their vehicle crossing was considered, but has not been
progressed at this time. This may be the subject of a further review at some time in the future, if
required.

4.2

An option to only accept applications that propose to provide a minimum of two off-street
parking spaces was also considered. However, it was felt that would be restrictive as most
properties in the borough do not have front gardens that could accommodate the space required

Page 27

Agenda Item 9

to allow a minimum of two off-street parking spaces, (i.e. 2 spaces of minimum size 2.7m wide
by 4.8m long). Unless the front garden is deep enough, the minimum acceptable opening width
at the back of the footway and also, the width of vehicle crossover to serve such a requirement
would be greater, increasing the applicant’s costs.
5.

Reasons for Recommendation

5.1

The benefits that will arise from the proposed policy and associated process and procedures will
enable both Sutton and Kingston Council to deliver a more informative, streamlined and
effective service in this regard. It is expected that it will also lead to improved efficiency and be
more cost effective. With the inclusion of checklists and answers to some typical ‘Frequently
Asked Questions’ (FAQs), more valid applications will be received leading to quicker processing
of applications than the existing procedures.

5.2

The inclusion of our policy principles and clear and concise application criterion in the policy
document and application pack should ensure consistent judgement is applied at all times by
the assessing officers, in line with the statutory requirements. This should also lead to less
formal complaints being received.

5.3

The new policy will support the delivery of the Council’s corporate vision, aims and objectives,
as defined in our One Planet Sutton policy.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

A business review has shown that the administration fee does not cover the Council’s actual
costs for assessing applications. The new fee proposed is £100 per application, which better
reflects the actual costs incurred by the Council to assess and application. This cost covers, 1)
administration costs, 2) initial site assessment by an engineer, 3) contacting the Public Utility
companies, and 5) inspection and approval of the completed construction. The construction
costs of the vehicle crossover are separate to this and will vary depending on the requirements
of the works that need to be done and the local site conditions. Both costs are entirely borne by
the applicant.
Legal

6.2

Under section 184(11) of the Highways Act 1980 any person may make a request to the
highway authority for a vehicle crossing (“vehicle crossover”) over a footway or verge in a
publicly maintained highway to provide vehicular access to a property adjoining the highway.

6.3

When determining an application, the highway authority may:
i) approve the request with or without modification;

Page 28

Agenda Item 9

ii) propose alternative works; or
iii) reject the application.
6.4

In determining how to exercise its powers, the highway authority must have regard to the
following matters:
a) the need to prevent damage to the footway or verge;
b) the need to ensure, so far is practicable, safe access to and egress from premises; and
c) the need to facilitate, so far as is practicable, the passage of vehicular traffic in
highways.

6.5

The authority may also have regard to other relevant matters, such as those set out in its
Vehicular Crossover Policy. The highway authority must consider each application on its
particular facts and merits and may depart from its policy, and any general presumptions
contained therein, after taking account of the circumstances in each particular case.

6.6

The authority must notify the applicant of its decision. If the application is approved (with or
without modification), the authority must supply the applicant with a quotation of the cost of the
works. The applicant may, by depositing the quoted amount with the highway authority, require
the construction of the requested vehicular crossover as soon as practicable after the applicant
has deposited the quoted amount.

6.7

If the application is refused, the applicant may challenge the decision on public law grounds by
making an application for judicial review to the High Court.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Kingston and Sutton Shared Environment Service – Sutton Council
Vehicle Crossover and Application Pack – October 2017

B

Integrated Impact Assessment

Background documents
None

Page 29

Agenda Item 9

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 16 March 2017

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Tony Cooke (Principal
Accountant)

Legal

Yes

Adrian Noviss (SLLP)

Integrated Impact Assessment
required?

Yes

Attached

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 31

Agenda Item 9

Agenda Item 9

Page 32
Appendix A

Contents
Page

Section 1: General Information

4

About Vehicular Crossovers
Legal
Other Permissions
Transport for London Road Network
Typical Vehicle Crossover Arrangements
●

Photo 1: Typical Concrete Crossover with Quadrant Kerbs

●

Photo 2: Typical Bitmac Crossover with Quadrant Kerbs

●

Photo 3: Typical Shared Vehicle Crossing

●

Photo 4: A Shingle (Loose Surface) Hard Standing

●

Photo 5: A Permeable Paving Hard Standing

Section 2: Vehicle Crossover Policy

8

Our Policy Principles
Minimum Standards (that must be met)
a) Opening Width at Back of Footway
b) Minimum Off-Street Parking Area
c) Visibility Requirements
d) Junctions
e) Proximity to Bus Stops and Pedestrian Crossings
f)

Trees

g) Grass Verges
h) Traffic Calming Features
Conflict with Street Furniture/Highways Assets
Traffic Management Orders
Advisory White Access Bar Markings
Drainage
Fees and Charges
Appeals

Section 3: Application Check List
●

Planning Approval Checklist

●

Pre-Application Checklist

●

Pre-Approval Checklist

Section 4: Application Form

16

17
Page 2 of 21

Page 33

Agenda Item 9
Appendix A

Section 5: Frequently Asked Questions
●

Frequently Asked Questions

Appendix A: Classified Roads – Sutton

18
20
21

Key to Guidance Diagrams
●

Figure 2: Off-street parking area

●

Figure 3: Required horizontal pedestrian visibility splays

●

Figure 4: Required vertical pedestrian visibility splays

●

Figure 5: Restricted vehicular visibility

●

Figure 6: Required distance from junction

●

Figure 7: Required distance from bus stops/pedestrian crossings

●

Figure 8: Required clearance form zig-zag lining

●

Figure 9: Required distance from street tree/vegetation

●

Figure 9a: Tree Root Protection Area (RPA)

●

Figure 10: Maximum grass verge depth

●

Figure 11: Required unobstructed vehicle path

Page 3 of 21

Agenda Item 9

Page 34
Appendix A

Section 1: General Information
The purpose of this document is to guide an applicant through the process of applying for a vehicle
crossover.

About Vehicle Crossovers
A vehicle crossover is required to allow vehicles to legally pass over a public footway and/or grass
verge to access property, and/or a site. To create a vehicle crossover, a section of kerb is lowered
(known as a ‘dropped kerb’) and a driveway is created linking the road to property, and/or a site.
The footway (and sometimes verge) is strengthened to protect against damage to the fabric of the
pavement, as well as to pipes and cables buried beneath.

Legal
If you would like to create a vehicle crossover on the public highway, or alter/remove an existing
access, you have the right to submit an application for the Council’s consideration. Before a
vehicular crossover can be constructed, or altered, permission from the Council is first required.
(Please note that the requirement for permission does not apply to private roads).
As the local highway authority we are responsible for making the final decision. We may approve
your request with or without modification, or may propose alternative works, or refuse the request.
Not every location will be suitable for us to approve. As the highway authority, we need to ensure
that access and egress to and from the public highway is safe and facilitates the passage of traffic.
A vehicle crossover is never owned by the applicant or the freeholder and remains an asset of the
local highways authority, nor does it form part of the premises boundary. It simply provides a right
of access and remains a part of the public highway maintainable at public expense.
Vehicle crossovers can only be carried out by authorised contractors working on behalf of either
the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames, or the London Borough of Sutton, (unless a Section
278 agreement has been entered into). Upon completion the vehicle crossover will be deemed
public highway and remain the responsibility of the local highway authority indefinitely.
The following actions are unlawful and may result in us taking enforcement and/or legal action
against those responsible.
●
●
●
●

Driving across a footway or verge without the existence of a vehicle crossover
Creation of a new vehicle crossover without our approval
Have an approved vehicle crossover, but park in such a way that the vehicle overhangs the
public footway, causing obstruction of the public highway
Use an approved vehicle crossover in such a way that causes damage to the vehicle
crossing itself, the adjacent footway and/or grass verge

Other permissions
Apart from our approval under the Highways Act 1980, the applicant may also need the following
other permissions.
1. Planning Permission
2. Written consent from the freeholder/land owner, if different from the applicant.
1. Planning Permission under the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 may be required if the
Page 4 of 21

Page 35

Agenda Item 9
Appendix A

proposed vehicle crossover:
●
●
●

is on a classified (A, B or C) road – (see Appendix A)
serves a property that is either a flat, maisonette, a multi-occupancy dwelling, or
commercial/business premises
is within a Conservation Area or Local Area of Special Character (LASC) and will therefore
require the applicant to first liaise with and obtain special consent for the proposal from the
Development Management Team in Sutton, or the Urban Design Team in Kingston, who
will coordinate the application and agree alternative construction materials in keeping with
the character of the local area.

Additionally, from the 1st October 2008, amendments to the Town and Country Planning Act
require applicants to obtain Planning Permission for hard-standings, unless the following conditions
are met:
I.
II.

the hard-standing is constructed using porous materials
the hard-standing is constructed in a way that allows surface water to run-off into a
soak-away or other permeable or porous area within the curtilage of the application
property
the hard-standing is less than 5 square metres in total area
the hard-standing was constructed prior to the 1st October 2008

III.
IV.

If Planning Permission is required it must be granted before an application is submitted under the
Highways Act 1980, and the applicant must provide a planning reference number on the vehicle
crossover application form. (Please note that there is no guarantee that if you receive Planning
Permission for a vehicle crossover that you will automatically be granted Highways approval and
vice versa – Applications for vehicle crossovers made under planning legislation will be considered
against a broader range of criteria in comparison to applications made under highways legislation.
They are separate regimes and different requirements apply to each.
Further information regarding Planning can be found on the Planning Portal,
(https://www.planningportal.co.uk)
2. Written consent is required from the freeholder/land owner, if that is not the applicant.
●

●

The applicant, or their agent, if they are not the owner of the property or land, must provide
a signed declaration from the owner (i.e. freeholder), giving their consent for the application
proposing a vehicle crossover to their property to be submitted
Other appropriate permissions/approvals may be required prior to submitting your
application for a vehicle crossover, if the property is previously/currently a social housing
property, owned by a Housing Association, or is a listed building.

Transport for London Road Network
Proposed vehicle crossovers located on the Transport for London Road Network (TLRN) require
highways approval from Transport for London (TfL). The TLRN in Kingston comprises the A3,
A243 and the A240 east of the A3. In Sutton it comprises the A217, A24 and A232. If you are
unsure whether your proposed crossover is on the TLRN or not, please contact TfL

Page 5 of 21

Agenda Item 9

Page 36
Appendix A

Typical Vehicle Crossover Arrangements

Photo 1: Typical Concrete Vehicle Crossover

Photo 2: Typical Bitmac Vehicle Crossover with Quadrant Kerbs

Photo 3: Typical Shared Vehicle Crossover

Page 6 of 21

Page 37

Agenda Item 9
Appendix A

Photo 4: A Shingle (Loose Surface) Hard Standing

Photo 5: A Permeable Paving Hard Standing

Page 7 of 21

Agenda Item 9

Page 38
Appendix A

Section 2: Vehicle Crossover Policy
Our Policy Principles
1.

This Policy is appropriate for householder/domestic vehicle crossover applications. We will
aim to treat every valid application with fairness in accordance with our adopted policy
standards.

2.

We will only consider applications that are compliant with the current Vehicle Crossover
Policy. Any previous policies will be withdrawn and will no longer be applicable from the date
of formal adoption of the new policy. Older, historic similar crossover installations in the same
vicinity do not necessarily mean that a new vehicle crossover application will be approved.

3.

It is acknowledged that a vehicle crossover must be provided in order to allow a vehicle to
legally pass across the public footway and/or grass verge to access property or land.

4.

This policy is intended for householder/domestic vehicle crossover applications. We will
consider up to two vehicle crossover requests, at the same site, on the same application
form. Granted permissions are valid for one year from the date of the Decision Notice.

5.

Applications submitted by a person other than the freeholder/property owner must first obtain
the consent of the freeholder/land owner for the application to be submitted.

6.

At all times the vehicle crossover remains part of the public highway and is an asset of the
local Highway Authority. Where a vehicle crossover is no longer required to facilitate
vehicular access it will be removed and the kerb reinstated at the occupier’s expense.

7.

If gates are to be fitted across the vehicular entrance to the property they must not open
outwards towards the public highway causing an obstruction. Any gates to a property must
not reduce or impair visibility for those using the public highway. Depending on the height,
some gates may require planning approval.

8.

The local Highway Authority’s appointed term contractor will construct all approved vehicle
crossovers, unless agreed by an appropriate council officer to the contrary, or where a legal
agreement (i.e. a section 278 agreement) has been entered into.

9.

In considering applications, it is the site that will be considered against our policy
requirements, not the vehicle size or type, or the occupier circumstances.

10.

Where the minimum standards e.g. off street parking space size requirement, are not met the
vehicle crossover application will be refused.

11.

Where adjacent properties with a shared driveway require a shared vehicle crossover, one
occupier should consensually act on behalf of both parties and submit a single application.

12.

We encourage all applications to be accompanied by a dimensioned plan (to scale if
possible) and any other appropriate supporting information illustrating the proposal.

13.

The application fee must be paid in full at the time the application is submitted.

14.

The hard-standing shall be constructed such that all surface water runoff shall be contained
within the applicant’s property boundary. The construction of any hard-standing shall be such
that no loose material will be able to migrate onto the highway. If it is proposed to use a loose
material (shingle) to surface the hard-standing a retaining strip must be used to prevent

Page 8 of 21

Page 39

Agenda Item 9
Appendix A

shingle migration
15.

There are minimum standards that must be met under this policy for an application to be
approved. Otherwise, it will be refused.

Minimum Standards (that must be met)
For safety, access and environmental reasons, the construction of all vehicle crossovers will be
subject to the following requirements: If any of these requirements are not met the application will
be refused.
a) Opening Width at Back of Footway – An opening size, of minimum 2.7m and
maximum 4.0m must be provided at the back of the footway, measured at right angles to
the public highway. The maximum opening for shared vehicle crossovers shall be at the
assessing officer's discretion. This dimension will be same width as the vehicle crossover,
measured at the back line of the footway (i.e. the junction of public highway with the
application property/land).

b) Minimum Off-Street Parking Area - The minimum off-street parking area measured at
right angles to the highway is, 4.80m long by 2.70m wide, (2.70m made up of 2.40m plus
0.30m on the driver’s side), as shown in Figure 2, below, (except where it fronts a
garage). No ‘short frontage’ agreements will be entered into. Crossovers are approved on
the basis that when using a driveway that drivers should reverse in and drive out in a
forward gear onto the highway as set out in the Highway Code.

c)

Visibility Requirements - In order to provide adequate safety to users of the public
highway and the users of the vehicular crossover adequate visibility is required when
entering and leaving the off-street parking space. The visibility splays required are shown in
Figures 3, 4 and 5, below. The visibility required is an area measuring 2.8m from the back
Page 9 of 21

Agenda Item 9

Page 40
Appendix A

of the footway boundary centrally and 3.3m along the back of the footway boundary in each
direction. This will create a safety zone to provide a driver adequate visibility to enter/leave
from the parking area. It is also necessary to ensure that the driver can see anything over
600mm in height from their driving position when entering/leaving the site to prevent injury
to children. If there is insufficient pedestrian, driver and/or vehicle visibility sightlines the
application will be refused, as approving the application will compromise public safety
and/or the passage of traffic on the highway. Any boundary walls, shrubs, treatments etc.
are to be no higher than 1.0m in height.

Page 10 of 21

Page 41

Agenda Item 9
Appendix A

d) Junctions – A proposed vehicle crossover must not be within 10m from a road junction,
(15m in the case of junctions on classified roads, A, B or C). A vehicle crossover will
not be permitted within the restricted zone as shown in Figure 6, below. This also applies to
junctions with roundabouts.

Page 11 of 21

Agenda Item 9

Page 42
Appendix A

e) Proximity to Bus Stops and Pedestrian Crossings – A proposed vehicle crossover
must not be within 10m of any formal pedestrian crossing or refuge (including zebra
crossings and traffic signalled crossings such as pelicans and toucans), bus stop or a bus
cage, as shown in Figure 7, below. Additionally, it must not encroach into or affect any
zig-zag road markings, as shown in Figure 8, below.

Page 12 of 21

Page 43

Agenda Item 9
Appendix A

f)

Trees – Highway trees will not be removed to allow a vehicle crossover. If there is
conflict with an established street tree on the public highway, a vehicle crossing cannot be
constructed within the root protection area (RPA) of the tree in accordance with British
Standards (currently BS 5837:2012). As a guide, for a tree with a single stem, the RPA is
calculated as 12 times the stem diameter, measured at a height of 1.5m above the
ground level as shown in Figures 9 and 9a, below. (This does not apply to trees on private
land). Additionally, no crossover will be permitted within a distance of no greater than
1metre from the nearest edge of the trunk of a tree. Note that if the assessing officer has
concerns about conflict with the presence of roots within 300mm of the ground surface of a
tree, roadside shrubbery, or planter, an inspection trench may need to be dug to investigate
further. This will be at the applicant’s expense and is non-refundable.

Page 13 of 21

Agenda Item 9

Page 44
Appendix A

Figure 9a: Root Protection Area (RPA) – shown in green.

g) Grass Verges – If the proposed crossover would require removal of a grass verge greater
than 2.0m deep (1.6m deep in Conservation Areas and Local Areas of Special Character),
measured at right angles to the highway, as shown in Figure 10, below, the application will
be refused.

h) Traffic Calming Features (e.g. speed humps, tables, cushions etc.) – If there are
any traffic calming features, such as horizontal and/or vertical deflections of the road
surface forming ‘kerb build-outs’, speed humps, tables, or cushions etc., that a vehicle
could not entirely clear before maneuvering onto the proposed vehicle crossover, as shown
in Figure 11, below, the application will be refused.

Page 14 of 21

Page 45

Agenda Item 9
Appendix A

Conflict with Street Furniture/Highway Assets - Applications for new or to modify an existing
vehicle crossover that impact on existing street furniture or statutory undertaker’s apparatus (i.e.
gas, water, electricity etc.) will require a decision by the affected statutory undertaker and the local
Highway Authority on an appropriate way forward. If required, any necessary works will be
undertaken wholly at the expense of the applicant. A crossover may not be permitted closer than
1metre to any item of street furniture such as a lamp column or road sign.

Traffic Management Orders – A proposed vehicle crossover must not result in the need to
amend an existing Traffic Management Order (TMO), e.g. the removal or amendment of existing
waiting and loading restrictions, or parking bay. This includes all designated parking bays, permit
holder parking bays in Controlled Parking Zones (CPZ’s), paid for bays, marked parking bays in
areas of permitted footway parking, restricted zones, home zones, permit parking areas etc.

Advisory White Access Bar Markings - If requested by the applicant, an advisory white bar
marking across the road in front of the crossover will be considered by the Highway Authority. If
approved, the road markings will be implemented in conjunction with the construction of the
crossover; all costs must be met by the applicant. It should be noted that white bar markings are
non-enforceable against obstructive parking, but act as a deterrent. Advisory white access bar
markings will not be provided in areas subject to parking restrictions/controls, including in Permit
Parking Areas.

Page 15 of 21

Agenda Item 9

Page 46
Appendix A

Drainage – The proposed parking area must be constructed so as not to drain onto the public
highway. Sustainable drainage (SuDS) principles must be used in the construction of any hard
standing.

Fees and Charges
●

In accordance with the Local Government (Transport) Regulation 1998, an appropriate fee
of £100, to cover the Council’s costs for considering an application will be paid at the time
of submitting an application. In the event of the application being refused the application fee
is non-refundable.

●

In accordance with the Highways Act 1980 (section 184), the cost of all works necessary to
construct the vehicle crossover, relocating of street furniture, alterations to statutory
undertakers’ equipment/plant and the realignment of any adjacent footway(s), will be
charged in full to the applicant.

●

The fees and charges are regularly reviewed and updated in the light of changes to;
legislation, regulation and contractual arrangements between the Council and its supplier.
The Council publishes its applicable fees and charges annually.

●

Quotations for works that are issued have a validity of three months from the date of issue.
If payment is not made within the due time then the job must be re-quoted to reflect any
possible changes in fees and charges that have occurred in the interim.

●

Applicants holding a blue badge are eligible for a £100 discount when applying for a new
vehicle crossover at their place of residence. The discount will be deducted from the final
construction cost of the vehicle crossover, should the application be approved.

●

We will only refund the fee if we receive a written instruction from the applicant withdrawing
the application. This instruction must be received 5 working days of submitting the
application.

Appeals
The decision made by officers of the Highway Authority is considered full and final. You will receive
a Decision Notice once the application has been decided. There is no right of appeal (unless there
are exceptional circumstances, which can be demonstrated) and the Council’s decision is final.
However, if your application has been refused and you believe that we have not followed our
procedures or applied our standards appropriately (i.e. made a mistake), please write to us
detailing your reasons. We will respond to you within 10 working days.

Page 16 of 21

Page 47

Agenda Item 9
Appendix A

Section 3: APPLICATION CHECKLIST
PLANNING APPROVAL CHECKLIST

(Complete prior to submitting an application)

Does the proposed vehicle crossover location……?
Relate to a multi-occupancy dwelling
Front onto classified road
Relate to a listed building
Relate to an ex or current council property
Form part of a current or future planning application
Use a hard-standing requiring approval
*NOTE*

(Complete prior to submitting an application)

Will any of the following affect the application…?
Insufficient off-street parking area
Conflict with street tree RPA, or vegetation (within 1.00m)
Conflict with street furniture (within 1.00m)
Distance from junctions, crossings and bus stops (within 10.00m)
Located on a bend with restricted visibility
Conflict with zig-zag road markings
Located within a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ)
Effect any waiting, loading or parking restrictions
Gates open outwards (towards the public highway)
Insufficient visibility splays

Yes
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐

No
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐

Answering yes to any of the “Pre-Application Checklist” questions above means that the application may initially be
rejected and/or delayed.

PRE-APPROVAL CHECKLIST

(Complete prior to an inspection or making payment)

Have you…?
Checked and agreed with the marked vehicle crossover location
Constructed a sustainable hard-standing (If inspection is required)
*NOTE*

No
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐

Answering yes to any of the “Planning Approval Checklist” questions above means that the application will
require planning approval. This must be obtained prior to submitting your crossover application.

PRE-APPLICATION CHECKLIST

*NOTE*

Yes
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐
☐

Yes
☐
☐

No
☐
☐

Answering no to any of the “pre-approval checklist” questions above means that you should contact the Highway
Authority (Kingston: 020 8547 5002 / Sutton: 020 8770 5000) and request to speak to the officer handling your
application prior to progressing with payment for the works.

As the location of a vehicle crossover is determined upon a site survey there is no guarantee that the
approved location will match that of a pre-constructed hard-standing. For this reason it is recommended
that the hard standing (i.e. off street parking area) is constructed after your application is submitted and
site assessed so that you are made aware of the exact proposed location of the crossover prior to the
construction of a hard-standing.
Data Protection Act 1998
Under the Data Protection Act 1998, we have a legal duty to protect any personal information we collect from you.
● We will only use personal information you supply to us for the reason that you provided it for.
● We will only hold your information for as long as necessary to fulfil that purpose.
● We will not pass your information to any other parties (including other Council departments) unless there is a legal
requirement for us to do so.
● All employees and contractors who have access to your personal data or are associated with the handling of that data are
obliged to respect your confidentiality
● When the data is no longer needed, it will be destroyed in line with the Council’s document deletion policies.

Page 17 of 21

Page 48

Agenda Item 9

Appendix A

Section 4: Application Form
APPLICANT DETAILS:
Mr / Mrs / Miss /
Ms

………………………………….……...

Daytime
Phone. No.

…………..…….

Email Address ……………………………………………………………………………………....
Address of vehicle crossover location ………………………………………………………..….....
…………………………………………………………………………………………..…………..
Address for correspondence (if different from the above) ……………………………....................
…………………………………………………………………………………………………..…..
CONSTRUCTION DETAILS (NEW VEHICLE CROSSOVER):
Desired starting point of opening into your property
from your left hand boundary (as viewed from the road)

……………………………..… Metres

Opening width required (minimum of 2.70m, maximum
of 4.0m at the back of the footway)

……………………………….. Metres

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS (VEHICLE CROSSOVER EXTENSION):
Side and length to be extended

Left / Right ………..……….… Metres

The location and size of any new or extended vehicle crossover will be determined by the council based upon highway
considerations and will have regard to trees, street furniture and current on-street parking.
In order to prevent over-running and damage to the footway the width of the new or widened vehicle crossover cannot
be less than the width of the back of the footway entrance onto your property. We strongly recommend that you do not
carry out any works to form a hardstanding until you are in receipt of a written estimate which would include
confirmation of your application being approved in our Decision Notice.
Please include your £100 fee for considering this application – cheques are to be made payable to “Royal Borough of
Kingston-upon Thames” or “London Borough of Sutton” respectively.

APPLICANT’S
SIGNATURE

.......................................................................................

Date
………………………..

If you are not the freeholder/owner of the application property/site, they will need to give you their consent to submit
this application, by signing the declaration below:

Date
……………………….

OWNER’S
SIGNATURE

.......................................................................................
Daytime
PRINT NAME:………………………………………….…………… Phone. No.

………………...

Please complete and return to the respective address, below:
Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Environment (Vehicle Crossings)
Guildhall 2,
Kingston upon Thames, Surrey, KT1 1EU

London Borough of Sutton
Highways and Transport Planned Works
24 Denmark Road,
Carshalton, Surrey, SM5 2JG

Page 18 of 21

Page 49

Agenda Item 9
Appendix A

Section 5: FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS
1. How much does it cost to apply?
The total cost of the application is £100 and covers, 1) administration costs, 2) initial site
assessment by an engineer, 3) contacting the Public Utility companies, and 5) inspection and
approval of the completed construction. The construction costs are separate to this and will vary
depending on the requirements of the works that needs to be done and the local site conditions.
2. Where can I find more information about creating a sustainable hardstanding?
Further information on this legislation and guidelines to on constructing a sustainable hard-standing
can be found on the following website: www.planningportal.gov.uk. You may also find some useful
guidance by searching on ‘paving for gardens’ on the websites of 1) the Royal Horticultural
Society, www.rhs.org.uk, or 2) the Deaprtment for Communities and Local Government, www.
Communities.gov.uk
3. Will the vehicle crossover have a macadam or concrete finish?
In order to maintain a consistency within the street, the construction and surface material used for a
crossing will be dependent upon the character and materials of the surrounding highway and / or the
materials used for other crossings in the street.
4. Will the vehicle crossover extension differ in appearance to the existing?
Yes, there is likely to be a difference in the appearance of the new construction, this is not due to
faulty workmanship or materials. The applicant will be given the opportunity to bear the costs of
any special works to reduce the difference or to undertake a full width reconstruction or resurfacing
should they wish.
5. What actions can be taken regarding public and private trees?
When an existing crossover is obstructed by a tree, to the obvious detriment of public safety, every
effort will be made to resolve the conflict so as to retain the tree. However, if this is not possible,
and public safety is being compromised, the tree may be removed and replacements planted. The
same principles apply in the case that the council’s Arboricultural Officer deems a street tree to be
dead or dying. The cost of the tree removal and replacement(s), or crossing relocation and
accommodation works, will be borne by the Council.
When an application for the construction of a new or an extension to an existing vehicle crossover
is received, and the Officer making the initial site visit feels that the proposals would have an
adverse effect on an established tree on private land, he will refer the matter to the Arboricultural
Officer who will consider the particular situation and act accordingly.
For trees on the public highway, no trees will be removed to allow a vehicle crossover and no
construction can be carried out within the tree’s root protection area (RPA) as defined in British
Standard 5837. This is the minimum area plotted as a circle, with the tree at the centre, where the
roots and soil structure must be protected as a priority to avoid irreparable damage to the tree. As a
guide (as specified in the British Standard), for a single stem tree, the root protection area is
calculates as 12 times the stem diameter. The stem diameter must be measured at a height of 1.5m
above the adjacent ground level. Construction of a vehicle crossover will not be permitted in this
area, and not within a minimum distance of 1metre from the trunk of a tree.
6. How will the slope of the vehicle crossover be determined?
The slope will provide proper cross-fall and drainage of the footway. The Authority is under no
obligation to meet the existing threshold level of your property. Where appropriate, and with the
owner’s consent, minor accommodation works may be undertaken within the private frontage to
Page 19 of 21

Page 50

Agenda Item 9

Appendix A

reduce any difference in levels. Gradients of greater than 1:10 will not be permitted to avoid the
underside of the vehicle ‘grounding’.
7. Why are some crossings joined?
In some cases crossings will be joined to create a shared crossing. As crossings are and remain part
of the public highway, no approval from the applicant and / or resident is required in such
circumstances.
8. Who has the authorisation to construct the vehicle crossover?
The Council’s term contractor will construct all public vehicle crossovers, as directed by the
Authority, unless agreed by an appropriate highway officer to the contrary and/or a legal agreement
in the form of a section 278 Agreement exists.
9. Are discounts offered when applying for a vehicle crossover?
Yes. When major footway maintenance works are being undertaken, as long as there is not a
conflict with any other vehicle crossover policy, residents will be offered the opportunity of having
a discounted (10%) vehicle crossover constructed whilst the works are in progress.
10. What is the consequence for illegally crossing the footway?
Under Section 184 of the Highways Act 1980 if vehicular access is required to a property across a
public footway and / or verge, then permission is required from the Council to do so.
As footways are constructed for pedestrian use they are not reinforced to bear the load of vehicles.
Repetitive crossing by vehicles causes potholes, broken slabs and underground utility damage and
poses both a safety risk and is costly to repair.
To prevent such damage in areas of illegal crossing the option will be given for a new or extension
to an existing crossover to be constructed. Once a specific time period has passed and if ignored and
no other arrangements made, a post will be placed at the rear of the footway restricting access to the
hard standing. The aim of this is to prevent further illegal crossing and footway damage.
11. Who is responsible for maintaining the vehicle crossover?
This is the responsibility of the Council as it forms part of the public highway. Initially the
Council’s appointed contractor who constructed the vehicle crossover is responsible for a period of
two years until such time that the responsibility has transferred to the Council.
12. How long does it take to construct a vehicle crossover?
Once works have commenced, it will generally take a contractor up to 5 days (including clearing
the site). If there are associated works to relocate existing street furniture this work will need to be
carried out prior to the construction works for the vehicle crossover commencing.
13. Where can I find information on the boroughs Conservation Areas and Local Areas of
Special Characters?
Information on the location of these areas can be found using the interactive map at the following
link:
Sutton:

TBC

Page 20 of 21

Page 51

Agenda Item 9
Appendix A

Appendix A: CLASSIFIED ROADS
London Borough of Sutton
Acre Lane
Angel Hill
Banstead Road, Banstead
Banstead Road, Carshalton
Beddington Lane
Beeches Avenue
Belmont Rise
Benhill Avenue
Beynon Road
Bishopsford Road
Boundary Road (1-45, 2-32)
Broadway The, Cheam
Burdon Lane
Cambridge Road
Carshalton Park Road (38-66, 41-71)
Carshalton Road, Sutton
Carshalton Road, Woodmansterne
Central Road
Cheam Common Road
Cheam Road
Colston Avenue
Cotswold Road
Crown Road (Part)
Croydon Lane
Croydon Road
Epsom Road
Ewell Road
Foresters Drive
Gander Green Lane
Green Lane, Morden
Green Wrythe Lane
Greenford Road
Grove Road (1-17, 2-72)
Hackbridge Road
High Street, Carshalton
High Street, Cheam
High Street, Sutton
Hilliers Lane
Little Woodcote Lane
London Road, Cheam
London Road, Hackbridge

Lower Road
Malden Road
Manor Road North
Manor Road, Wallington
Marshalls Road
Middleton Road (169-281, 234-382)
Mitcham Road (footpath)
Nightingale Road
North Street
Oldfields Road
Park Hill
Park Lane, Carshalton
Park Lane, Wallington
Plough Lane, Purley (31-41A, 56-66)
Plough Lane, Wallington
Pound Street
Reigate Avenue
Ringstead Road
Rose Hill
Ruskin Road
Sandy Lane South
St Dunstan’s Hill
St Helier Avenue
St Nicholas Way
Stafford Road
Stanley Park Road
Staplehurst Road
Station Way
Stonecot Hill
Sutton Common Road
Throwley Road
Throwley Way
Tudor Drive
West Street, Carshalton
Westmead Road
Woodcote Green Road
Woodcote Road
Woodmansterne Lane
Wrythe Green Road
Wrythe Lane

Page 21 of 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 53

Agenda Item 9
Appendix B

Integrated Impact Assessment
Section 1: Aims and demographics
a. Is this a new policy or a review of an existing policy or service?
This is a review of an existing Policy

b. What are the aims and purpose of this proposal?
The aim of this proposal to review and introduce a new policy, and new application
procedures and process for the provision of householder applications for vehicular
crossovers. This review has been proposed as the current policy and process is regularly
challenged by applicants who apply under the existing policy and are refused permission for
a vehicular crossover and then lodge a formal complaint, which sometimes escalates to the
Local Government Ombudsman. The procedures and process aims to bring in minimum
standards and clear and concise criteria for consistently assessing applications with, thereby
reducing potential complaints.
c. Which of the geographic areas does this proposal affect? (insert any specific
wards or state all borough)

The proposal affects the whole borough.

Section 2: Equality and diversity

a.

Which stakeholder group or groups does this proposal affect? (e.g. Staff at
LBS, residents, third and voluntary sector)

It will affect residents as well as owners of residential property in the borough as they will
need to give permission to their tenants or leaseholders who may apply for permission to
construct a vehicular crossover to their property.
b.

Whose needs is the proposal designed to meet? (e.g. include any specific
impact on protected group members e.g. older people, disabled people, BME)

The proposals are designed to meet the needs of all residents who may wish to apply for a
vehicular crossover to serve the property that they reside in. Disabled applicants will receive
an additional benefit of a £100 discount on the construction costs of a vehicular crossover, if
their application is approved and proceeds to full construction.

Agenda Item 9

Page 54
Appendix B

c.

What evidence has been collected to inform this proposal?

A number of formal complaints have been reviewed by unsatisfied applicants who have been
refused permission for a proposed vehicle crossover.
d.

What equality-related information, for example through consultation with
stakeholders, has been gathered on this proposal? (Indicate the type of
information gathered and ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender, age,
religion and sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring
responsibilities. Attach a summary or refer to where the evidence is held.)

No formal or informal consultation with potential applicants (i.e. resident householders) has
been carried out regarding the review of the vehicle crossover policy. Consultation
has taken place with the Portfolio Holder (Cllr Jill Whitehead), and members of the
DMT and their observations and comments have been taking into account in
developing the proposed policy. Various technical officers within the Highways &
Transport Service that are involved in delivering the existing policy operationally,
have also been consulted and have input into the development of the proposed
policy.

e.

In what ways might the proposal impact positively or negatively on some
groups of people? (Please ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender,
age, religion and sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring
responsibilities.)

It is envisaged that the proposals will have a positive impact on all potential applicants as the
policy, new eligibility criteria, minimum standards, procedures and process are clearer to
understand and will be applied consistently for all applications. Disabled applicants will have
an additional benefit in that they will receive a £100 discount on the construction costs of a
vehicular crossover, if their application is approved and proceeds to full construction. No
specific negative impacts have been identified.

f.

What will be done to promote equality of opportunity as part of this proposal?

All applications will be treated equally and the new policy will be applied consistently.

Page 55

Agenda Item 9
Appendix B

Section 3: Health and well being
Please note: Data from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment can be used to fill in this
section of the form, which can be accessed here: h
 ttp://www.suttonjsna.org.uk/
a. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact on the physical
and/or mental wellbeing of residents? If there is a negative impact what action
will be taken to mitigate this? What evidence has been or will be collected?
It is envisaged that the proposals will have a positive impact on applicants who have a
reliance on a vehicle and need to park their vehicle as close to their front door as possible,
e.g. small business people who may have to carry heavy loads, parents/carer’s with children,
those who have to regularly carry heavy loads such as shopping etc. No specific negative
impacts have been identified.
b. In what way could this proposal have a positive or negative impact on an
individual’s opportunity to improve their own health and wellbeing? If there is a
negative impact what action will be taken to mitigate this? What evidence has
or will be collected?
No specific impacts identified
c. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact
disproportionally on the health and wellbeing of one or more different
communities? (e.g. improve the lives and health of a vulnerable group such as
people with learning disabilities). If there is a negative impact what action will
be taken to mitigate this?
Disabled applicants will have an additional benefit in that they will receive a £100 discount on
the construction costs of a vehicular crossover, if their application is approved and proceeds
to full construction. No specific negative impacts have been identified.

Agenda Item 9

Page 56
Appendix B

Section 4: Local Economy
Is this section relevant to your proposal?

No

a. Will this proposal affect the local job market, local business or local inward
investment to the borough?

b. Does this proposal impact upon employment opportunities for residents in
Sutton?

c. Does this proposal provide opportunities for the third sector organisations and
or local businesses in Sutton?

Section 5: Sustainability
Is this section relevant to your proposal?
Yes

No

a. Is this proposal sustainable medium or long term for improving services in
Sutton?
.
It is expected that the service provided to deal with applications for vehicular crossovers will
improve and be sustained for the foreseeable future.
b. Is this proposal a cost – effective use of resources?
It is considered that the proposal will improve the efficiency and effective use of resources as
the business process associate with the new policy will be streamlined.
c. If applicable; does this proposal have any impact on the environment and One
Planet Living Principles in Sutton? (e.g. does it impact upon reducing waste,
encourage the use of carbon neutral modes of transport conserve the
environment or encourage the efficient use of water? Please see guidance for
further details if this is relevant to your policy or review).
The proposals support the One Planet Living Principles as they protect street trees and
larger areas of grass verge on the public highway and also promote the use of Sustainable
Drainage Systems for creating private off-street parking spaces.

Page 57

Agenda Item 9
Appendix B

Section 6: Actions and Publications

1. Please rate the overall impact identified through this assessment with the
level of action that needs to be taken (delete as appropriate):

a.

What actions are going to be taken as a result of this IIA to address negative
impacts or previously met unidentified needs?

As previously stated, no negative impacts are envisaged in implementing this new
policy.
b.

What data monitoring or evaluation activity has been put into place to monitor
the impact of this proposal?

The number of complaints relating to vehicular crossover applications will be
monitored once the new policy is adopted and comes into effect on the 1st October
2017 – It is expected that there will be a reduction in the number and severity of
complaints relating to the implementation of this policy.
c.

Sign- off

Mervyn Bartlett

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 59

Report to:
Report title:

Agenda Item 10

Environment & Neighbourhood
Date
30 March 2017
Committee
:
Highways and Street Lighting Works Contracts Procurement

Report from:

Mary Morrissey - Strategic Director of Environment, Housing &
Regeneration

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough-wide

Chair of
Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan
Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

Councillor Jill Whitehead

Signed
:

Mehmet Mazhar, Strategic Management Support, Shared Highways &
Transport, 020 8547 5943
● An Open Council
● A Green Council
Open
Date:

16 March 2017

1.

Summary

1.1

This report provides an update on the re-procurement of Sutton’s highways and street lighting
works term contracts and seeks approval to proceed as detailed in the recommendations.

2.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Environment & Neighbourhood Committee:

2.1

Note the progress made on the procurement process being carried out to secure new highways
and street lighting works term contracts, to commence on the 1 October 2017.

2.2

Agree that the procurement of new highways and street lighting works term contracts, (arranged
as 4 Lots in a framework agreement) be progressed to secure these contracts, commencing on
the 1 October 2017, for the following Lots:
Lot 1 – Ad hoc reactive and minor highways planned maintenance
Lot 2 – Planned highways improvements (schemes)
Lot 3 – Planned (machine) carriageway resurfacing
Lot 4 – Street Lighting (planned, reactive, structural & electrical testing)

Agenda Item 10

2.3

Page 60

Note that in the interim period whilst the procurement for the new contracts is carried out, that
Sutton’s existing highways works contracts, listed below are to be extended by contract
variation by a further 6 months from their expiration date of the 31 March 2017.
●
●
●

Planned Highways Maintenance and General Works Term Contract - Contractor: FM
Conway Ltd
Reactive Highways Maintenance Services – Contractor: RJ Dance (Contractors) Ltd
Street Lighting Maintenance and Improvement Services: Kier Integrated Services Ltd

2.4

Agree to use the London Highways Alliance Contract (LoHAC) framework established by
Transport for London (TfL), if and when required, for highways maintenance, street lighting and
improvement works, (should the extended contracts, or new contracts, not fulfil the Council’s
performance expectations).

2.5

Agree to delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and Regeneration,
in consultation with the Chair of the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee, to consider
the tender evaluation outcome and officer recommendations, and award the contract lots
referenced in recommendation 2.2 above, in accordance with the procurement process.

3.

Background
Current Position

3.1

Sutton Council annually delivers a vast range of highways and transport services to its local
community of people who live, work and spend their leisure time in the borough. The public
highway maintained at public expense is an important part of the integrated transport network
that supports the local economy and ensures sustainable growth. It is the most expensive asset
the Council owns. The cost of replacing this asset was valued at £725m in 2012/13. It is
therefore a top priority for the Council to maintain and improve the highway network in order to
enable safe and expeditious movement of its users throughout the borough. This would not be
possible without support and assistance of specialist highways works contractors engaged
under various works contracts.

3.2

In 2010, the council awarded the three contracts referenced in recommendation 2.2 above, to
provide a range of highways and transport services covering, 1) highways planned and reactive
maintenance and general works, awarded to FM Conway Ltd, 2) reactive highways
maintenance, awarded to RJ Dance Ltd and 3) street lighting maintenance and improvement
improvements, awarded to Cartledge May Gurney (now Kier Integrated Services Ltd).

3.3

All three of these contracts were awarded for an initial 5 year term, with the option for Sutton
Council to extend the term by a further 2 years in single year extensions, totalling an overall
duration of 7 years, ending on the 31 March 2017.On the 15 January 2015, the Environment
and Neighbourhood Committee agreed the extension of these contracts in principle, subject to

Page 61

Agenda Item 10

satisfactory negotiations with the suppliers, following which the three contracts were extended
and are therefore due to expire on the 31 March 2017.
3.4

Due to changes in management during the reorganisation to set up the Kingston and Sutton
Shared Highways and Transport Service the procurement process was started later than
anticipated, requiring a further extension of these contracts by 6 months to cover the period 1
April 2017 to 30 September 2017. The procurement process to provide new contracts arranged
as a framework beyond the 1 October 2017 is in progress and a programme outlining the
planned procurement time table is attached to this report as Appendix 1, (to follow).

3.5

Sutton Council’s Commissioning Board have considered the contents of this report and have
contributed to its development.
Proposed Way Forward

3.6

In compliance with the European Union (EU) procurement Directives covering public sector
contracts as set out in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and in order to achieve ‘best
value’, a notice of the proposed tender must be published in the Official Journal of the European
Union (OJEU), (via the online London Tenders Portal), as the overall contract value of £2.8m
per annum (£28m over 10 years) exceeds the OJEU threshold of £4,104,394 for works
contracts. It is proposed that a single stage open procurement procedure will be used.

3.7

It is proposed that a group of 4 individual contracts, or ‘Lots’, will be set up in a framework
arrangement with an agreement between the Council,(as the employer), and the individual Lot
contractors for the supply of works. Each Lot can be used on a “call-off” basis, meaning there is
no obligation to purchase services, but purchases can nonetheless be made by the employer
via each of the individual Lots as required. In summary, the scope of the services that can be
purchased from each of the individual Lots, as referenced in recommendation 2.3 of this report,
is detailed in the table, below. The appointed contractor will be obliged to provide the Works as
and when ordered and may only decline to do so if it can show good reason why it is unable to
carry out the Works.
Lot 1 – Ad hoc reactive and minor highways planned maintenance
Scope of
works

● Reactive maintenance of highways assets, such as roads (including pothole
repairs, patching), kerbs, footways, cycleways, footpaths, verges, street
furniture, guardrail, safety barriers, drainage (including soakaways), signs,
road markings, etc.
● Planned highways maintenance of footways, footpaths, verges, paving
renewals, etc.
● Reactive carriageway minor repairs, e.g. patching, ‘Nufalt’ etc.
● Emergency call-out service, including accident damage remedial works etc.

Lot 2 – Planned highways improvements (schemes)
Scope of
works

● Civil engineering works associated with planned improvement schemes
such as traffic calming, 20mph zones, controlled parking zones, parking

Agenda Item 10

Page 62

projects, pedestrian and environmental improvement, accident remedial,
junction improvement, cycle lanes/paths, traffic priority schemes, associated
drainage works, general traffic management schemes, pedestrian/cycle
crossings, traffic islands, bus lane, bus priority, public realm improvement,
associated drainage, signs (including electrified signage) and road
markings), etc.
● Major highways and transport schemes
Lot 3 – Planned (machine) carriageway resurfacing
Scope of
works

● Planned carriageway (machine) resurfacing, surface treatments and
reconstruction etc.

Lot 4 – Street Lighting (planned, reactive, structural & electrical testing)
Scope of
works

● Improvement and general works of street lighting, planned and reactive
maintenance of street lighting equipment, electrified street furniture
including lamp columns, road signs, bollards, traffic monitoring equipment,
cable laying, electrical fittings, etc.
● Testing of electrical equipment on the public highway
● Testing of structural integrity and fitness for purpose of lamp columns
● Emergency call-out service

3.8

The proposed length (or term) of each contract Lot is 7 years, commencing on the 1 October
2017, with the option to extend for a further 3 years, to 30 September 2027, in single year
extensions, subject to the Employer’s decision and satisfactory performance as measured by
Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s), as referenced in paragraph 3.11, below. Each Lot is
independent of each other in terms of performance assessment. The length of the term
(potentially 10 years in total) will allow tenderers to submit more competitive bids than if the term
was shorter, as the greater volume of works purchased over the longer term could be offset
against their initial capital investment costs, thus reducing their risk on making a reasonable
profit with the submission of keener price bids. Price reductions will be sought in later years and
in the extended term.

3.9

The form of Contract will be New Engineering Contract 3 (NEC3), term service contract, with the
partnering option.

3.10 Due to the duration of the contracts, a partnering agreement will be entered into between each
of the Lot contractors and the Employer to encourage collaborative working, openness and
mutual trust to develop between the parties to each of the contracts. The partnering
arrangements will require continual benchmarking, target setting, assessment, feedback and
adaptation via the KPI’s and regular structured meetings to ensure continuous improvement
throughout the term of the contracts.
3.11 The KPI’s will be linked to the contract extensions. There will be quarterly evaluations and
annual assessments that will determine this. Subject to satisfactory performance (in line with the

Page 63

Agenda Item 10

agreed targets), the term of the contract beyond the core 7 years may be extended by a further
3 years in single year extensions, subject to the outcome of the overall annual assessment,
allowing the full term of the contract, i.e. 10 years, to be achievable. Each additional single year
extension may be awarded once two successive years of good performance (measured via
KPI’s) has been achieved, effectively credit being built up annually in 6 month blocks. Therefore,
subject to good performance it may be possible to award additional single year term extensions
in years 2, 4, and 6 of the contract term. If the contractor’s performance is below set targets,
then there may be reduction in term in 6 month blocks. This does not take away the right of the
employer to terminate any of the contracts at any given time, if not satisfied with the overall
performance of the contractor/s, and remedial action fails to deliver improvement.
3.12 The KPI’s will have annual targets that will be incrementally increased year on year to ensure
that there is continuous improvement throughout the term of the contract. There will be quarterly
reviews culminating in annual reviews that determine whether the contract term is extended or
reduced beyond the core 7 year term. It is proposed that the KPI’s will address the following
areas:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Customer satisfaction
Resources & Performance: Starting and completing works to agreed programme
Quality: Completing works with zero defects
Timely submission of invoices
Health and safety records
Environmental performance
Social value (including local apprenticeships, linking with the Looked After Children
Service)

3.13 The tender submissions will be evaluated on a 60:40, Quality:Price basis, (i.e. with 60% of the
total available marks being awarded for quality and 40% of the marks being awarded for price).
For each Lot, the quality evaluation will be based on an assessment of a combination of the
tenderer’s quality submission and a panel interview of select members of the team that they
propose to resource the contract.
3.14 As part of their tender submission, the prospective suppliers will be required to submit a figure
for the percentage discount they would offer if they were to be successful in being awarded
more than one Lot.
3.15 The current and proposed contracts are and will be Sutton Council Contracts managed by the
Kingston and Sutton Shared Highways and Transport Service. The geographic area that the
contracts will cover is the geographic area within the Sutton Borough Council boundary.
However, a provision will be made within the contracts for the Royal Borough of Kingston (RBK)
to participate at any given time within the term of the contracts, if they so wish. This is in
recognition of the partnership working between the two boroughs via the Kingston and Sutton
Shared Highways and Transport Service. However, the contractual arrangements RBK will have
should they participate, will be between RBK and the contractors and will be completely
separate from the Sutton arrangements.

Agenda Item 10

4.

Page 64

Issues
Risks of Not Extending the Existing Contracts

4.1

If the existing three contracts are not extended by a further 6 months from the 1 April 2017, to
the 30 September 2017, there is risk that the Capital Highways and Transport Programme for
2017/18 may not be delivered.

4.2

Negotiations for contract extensions of 6 months beyond the 31 March 2017 have been
successful and both FM Conway and RJ Dance have agreed to continue providing a service on
the same terms and conditions until the 30 September 2017. RJ Dance has, however,
requested that their contract prices be adjusted in accordance with the Retail Price Index (RPI)
from the 1 April 2017 as stipulated in their contract. This has been agreed as it is in line with the
contract terms. Negotiations with Kier Integrated Services are ongoing and will be reported in
due course.

4.3

Any commitments that have been made during the fiscal year 2016/17 with the existing
incumbent contractors will be honoured and works completed. Payments will be dealt with as
accruals and be paid for, from the 2016/17 programme budgets. Commitments made during the
additional 6 month contract extension period will be paid for from the 2017/18 programme
budgets.
Performance of Existing Contractors

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

The performance of Incumbent contractors, FM Conway Ltd and RJ Dance (Contractors) Ltd,
Kier Integrated Services Ltd has generally been satisfactory.
FM Conway Ltd
FM Conway has worked for the borough for over 20 years and is the current incumbent
‘highways maintenance and general works’ contractor having been appointed in 2010 for this
purpose. They are now in the 7 and final year of the possible 5 plus 2 years term, which expires
on the 31 March 2017. Over the term of the contract their performance has been monitored via
KPI’s at regular operational meetings.
They are a company that is predominantly based in south London, although they have contracts
with local authorities across all of London, including with Westminster City Council. In facilitation
of their contract with Sutton, they have invested in local infrastructure in the form of a depot in
Beddington Lane to enable cost effective deliveries.
They operate a self delivery model and do not rely on a complex supply chain thus minimising
their risk associated with costs and effective coordinated delivery, which is of benefit to its
clients.

Page 65

4.8

4.9

Agenda Item 10

In mid-term of their contract with Sutton, some performance issues were identified and were
addressed as part of the regular contract meetings held, and during the contract extension
negotiations. These related to failures of core samples taken of finished works (coring is a
random sampling of highway works to assess if the sub surface materials meet the required
standards), and adherence to the requirements of road space occupation in line with the
Council’s Traffic Management Act permitting requirements.
RJ Dance (Contractors) Ltd
RJ Dance has worked for the borough since 1980, undertaking contracts for reactive, planned
maintenance and minor highway improvements, including several major schemes under
previous historic contracts, over this period. They are the current ‘reactive highways
maintenance and general works’ contractor also now in the 7th
 and final year of the possible 5
st
plus 2 years term, which expires on the 31 March 2017. Their performance is also monitored
via KPI’s at regular operational meetings.

4.10 They are relatively smaller as a company than FM Conway and have a culture of working
collaboratively in partnership with its clients. They have always been proactive to the needs of
the borough, who they value as an important client.
4.11 Similarly, there have been some performance issues regarding traffic management
arrangements of live sites and failures of core samples of completed works.
Kier Integrated Services (formerly Cartledge May Gurney)
4.12 In 2010, the ‘street lighting maintenance and improvement’ contract was awarded to Cartledge
May Gurney who were later acquired by Kier Integrated Services and the contract was
accordingly novated. The existing contract includes identified KPI’s under an ‘incentive
schedule’ with targets to act as a measure of performance in consideration of contract
extensions, which have been awarded.
4.13 However, since the company has been acquired by the Kier group, some of the existing
management and personnel have left the employment of the company, which has impacted on
its management capacity, affecting the company’s overall resilience.
4.14 In terms of performance, generally their response to emergency call outs, night scouting and
reactive remedies to power outages/faults has been satisfactory. In contrast, they have limited
capacity with regards to works which require a higher level of planning and management. These
aspects of performance have been raised with the contractor and are the subject of ongoing
monitoring. The extension of the contract by a further 6 months post 31st March 2017 is also
ongoing and will be updated on in due course.
5.

Other Options Considered
Do Not Extend the Existing Contracts by a Further 6 months – Complete Re-procurement by the
31st March 2017

Agenda Item 10

Page 66

5.1

This is not a viable option as, 1) the procurement process cannot be completed within this
timeframe, 2) even if the it was possible to re-procure within this timeframe, this would not allow
an adequate mobilisation period for any new contractors that may be appointed, placing the
delivery of the Capital Highways and Transport Programme at risk, and 3) additional pressure of
time and available resources will be placed on the procurement team in the final (busiest)
quarter of the financial year.
Extend the Existing Contracts by a Further 6 months – Re-procure New Contracts to
Commence on the 1 October 2017

5.2

This is the preferred option. Negotiations with existing incumbent contractors have commenced.
FM Conway and RJ Dance have agreed to continue for the additional 6 month period and have
also confirmed their interest in tendering for the new contracts. Negotiations with Kier integrated
Services are ongoing and will be reported in due course. The South London Legal Partnership
(SLLP) is providing legal support to complete the legal documentation to enable this.

5.3

Purchase Services from LoHAC
This option has been explored and may offer a ‘fall back’ position, if the extended contracts fail
to perform during the additional 6 month period. In terms of using the LoHAC for the provision of
highways and street lighting services on a longer term basis, (instead of re-procuring new
Sutton Contracts), earlier negotiations in this regard did take place, but failed due to LoHAC
management requesting an additional £600k per annum management fee to service the
borough, which is considered to be unreasonable, as re-procurement of the new ‘bespoke’
contracts for Sutton will provide better value for money.

5.4

However, we should keep our options open and be prepared to use LoHAC if necessary to plug
any gaps in the interim. (The LoHAC is an 8 year framework due to end in 2021).

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

Costs in relation to these contracts will be borne within existing budgets. The prospect
of any savings being made as a result of these contract negotiations should be pursued
to aid the Council's financial position.
Legal

6.2

The proposals are contractually sound and although the further variations / extensions
are in effect, short term direct awards the risk of challenge is probably low.

Page 67

7.

Agenda Item 10

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Highways Project Plan

B

Integrated Impact Assessment

Background documents

None
Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 16 March 2017

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Tony Cooke (Principal
Accountant)

Legal

Yes

John Cheetham (SLLP)

Integrated Impact Assessment
required?

Yes

Attached

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 69

Agenda Item 10

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 71

Agenda Item 10
Appendix B

Integrated Impact Assessment
Section 1: Aims and demographics
a. Is this a new policy or a review of an existing policy or service?
This is not a new, or review of an existing policy and relates to the procurement of new
highways and street lighting contracts for Sutton Council.
b. What are the aims and purpose of this proposal?
The aim of this proposal is to introduce new highways and street lighting contracts for the
borough to cover potentially the next 10 years as the current contracts are due to expire. The
new contracts will be arranged in 4 Lots in a framework agreement. The 4 Lots are:
Lot 1 – Ad hoc reactive and minor highways planned maintenance
Lot 2 – Planned highways improvements (schemes)
Lot 3 – Planned (machine) carriageway resurfacing
Lot 4 – Street Lighting (planned, reactive, structural & electrical testing)

c. Which of the geographic areas does this proposal affect? (insert any specific
wards or state all borough)
The whole geographic area of the borough will be affected by this proposal.

Section 2: Equality and diversity
a. Which stakeholder group or groups does this proposal affect? (e.g. Staff at

LBS, residents, third and voluntary sector)
This proposal will affect all cross-sections of the community that use the areas of public
highway within the borough’s geographic area. This includes, residents, businesses and
those who travel through the borough, by any mode of transport – (Highway works by their
very nature impact on everybody in the borough and can cause disruption and delay on the
highway network).
b. Whose needs is the proposal designed to meet? (e.g. include any specific

impact on protected group members e.g. older people, disabled people, BME)
It is envisaged that the delivery of these contracts will meet the needs of all users of the
public highway as the contracts will provide a means by which the public highway can be
improved and maintained.

Agenda Item 10

Page 72
Appendix B

c.

What evidence has been collected to inform this proposal?

A review of the existing contracts, listed below, has been carried out and lessons learnt,
which have been applied to the provisions contained within the proposed contracts (such as
Key Performance Indicators linked to possible contract term extensions) to ensure that there
is good performance by successful contractors that continually improves.
●
●
●

Planned Highways Maintenance and General Works Term Contract - Contractor:
FM Conway Ltd
Reactive Highways Maintenance Services – Contractor: RJ Dance (Contractors) Ltd
Street Lighting Maintenance and Improvement Services: Kier Integrated Services
Ltd

d. What equality-related information, for example through consultation with

stakeholders, has been gathered on this proposal? (Indicate the type of
information gathered and ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender, age,
religion and sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring
responsibilities. Attach a summary or refer to where the evidence is held.)
No specific equality related information has been gathered on this proposal. However, Sutton
Council’s Commissioning Board, DMT and Portfolio Holder (Cllr Jill Whitehead) have
been consulted and their observations and comments taken into account in
developing the contract tender proposal.

e. In what ways might the proposal impact positively or negatively on some

groups of people? (Please ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender,
age, religion and sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring
responsibilities.)
Positive Impact: The implementation of the new contracts will enable the improvement and
maintenance of the public highway, including street lighting. This will ensure that the public
duty to maintain the highway so that it is safe for all cross sections of the community, but in
particular the more vulnerable sections of the community, e.g, the elderly, young, and
disabled. The new contracts will also provide employment opportunities for prospective
apprentices from all backgrounds. No specific negative impacts have been identified as part
of this proposal.

f.

What will be done to promote equality of opportunity as part of this proposal?

The new contracts will also provide employment opportunities for prospective apprentices
from all backgrounds

Page 73

Agenda Item 10
Appendix B

Section 3: Health and well being
Please note: Data from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment can be used to fill in this
section of the form, which can be accessed here: http://www.suttonjsna.org.uk/
a. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact on the physical
and/or mental wellbeing of residents? If there is a negative impact what action
will be taken to mitigate this? What evidence has been or will be collected?
Well maintained highways assist in keeping the general traveling public safe.

b.

In what way could this proposal have a positive or negative impact on an
individual’s opportunity to improve their own health and wellbeing? If there is a
negative impact what action will be taken to mitigate this? What evidence has
or will be collected?

No specific impacts identified
c. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact
disproportionally on the health and wellbeing of one or more different
communities? (e.g. improve the lives and health of a vulnerable group such as
people with learning disabilities). If there is a negative impact what action will
be taken to mitigate this?
No specific impacts identified

Section 4: Local Economy
Is this section relevant to your proposal?
Yes

No

a. Will this proposal affect the local job market, local business or local inward
investment to the borough?
This proposal could generate local employment as successful tenderers will require
additional resources to deliver the works required under the new contracts. A well maintained
and improved public highway is attractive to potential investors in the borough.
b. Does this proposal impact upon employment opportunities for residents in
Sutton?

Page 74

Agenda Item 10

Appendix B
Yes, as there will be opportunities for employment of local people by the successful
tenderer’s in order to resource the contracts.
c. Does this proposal provide opportunities for the third sector organisations and
or local businesses in Sutton?
Successful tenderer’s could be local contractors, depending on the quality and price of their
bid.
Section 5: Sustainability
Is this section relevant to your proposal?
Yes

No

a. Is this proposal sustainable medium or long term for improving services in
Sutton?
The proposal is likely to provide long-term improvement of services provided by the borough
as the contracts have a potential term of up to 10 years.

b. Is this proposal a cost – effective use of resources?
The tender submissions are competitive and the tender evaluation will be based on a 60:40
Quality:Price split. The successful tenderer’s would have been assessed against this criteria
ensuring the most competitive bids are successful and provide value for money, ensuring the
most effective use of resources.
c. If applicable; does this proposal have any impact on the environment and One
Planet Living Principles in Sutton? (e.g. does it impact upon reducing waste,
encourage the use of carbon neutral modes of transport conserve the
environment or encourage the efficient use of water? Please see guidance for
further details if this is relevant to your policy or review).
The Proposal will have a positive impact on the One Sutton Planet Living Principles as the
contracts will contain Key Performance Indicators (KPI) that will cover the following areas.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Customer satisfaction
Resources & Performance: Starting and completing works to agreed
programme
Quality: Completing works with zero defects
Timely submission of invoices
Health and safety records
Environmental performance
Social value (including local apprenticeships, linking with the Looked After
Children Service)

As shown, ‘Environmental Performance’ will be a primary KPI that will be regularly monitored
and scored against set targets to cover 1)reduction, reuse and recycling of ‘waste’ materials,

Page 75

Agenda Item 10
Appendix B

2) the protection of the green environment, including highway trees, shrubs and verges, and
3) reduction of pollution of the local environment.

Section 6: Actions and Publications

1. Please rate the overall impact identified through this assessment with the
level of action that needs to be taken (delete as appropriate):

a. What actions are going to be taken as a result of this IIA to address negative

impacts or previously met unidentified needs?

No specific negative impacts have been identified as part of this IIA.
b. What data monitoring or evaluation activity has been put into place to monitor

the impact of this proposal?

The KPI’s as referenced above will be put in place to monitor and continually improve
the impacts of this proposal.
c.

Sign- off

Mervyn Bartlett

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 77

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:

Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
ANumber(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 11

Environment & Neighbourhood
Date: 30 March 2017
Committee
Review of the new Shared Environment Service
Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director, Environment, Housing and
Regeneration, London Borough of Sutton.
Roy Thompson, Director of Place, Royal Borough of Kingston.
Borough Wide
Councillor Jill Whitehead
Graham Beattie, Interim Transformation and Change Manager, SES,
020 8547 5652
● An Open Council
● A Green Council
Open
Date:

15 March 2017

1.

Summary

1.1

This report presents the outcome of the Shared Environment Service (SES) review. It highlights
a number of notable successes from the SES first year of operation and recommends a future
service development focus to assist the SES achieve its full potential. A similar report is going to
Kingston’s Residents Committee on 23 March.

2.

Recommendations
The Environment & Neighbourhood Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Agree the Shared Environment Service should continue to provide shared Highways &
Transport and Regulatory Services for Kingston and Sutton with a service development focus
on completing the delivery of the opportunities for improvement, reconsidering the
commissioning arrangements, some structural management realignment as determined by
Officers and the implementation of a programme of cultural and behavioural change.

Agenda Item 11

Page 78

2.2

Agree to delegate authority to the Strategic Director, Environment, Housing and Regeneration to
implement the recommendations arising from the review report in liaison with the Director of
Place at the Royal Borough of Kingston.

3.

Background

3.1

Kingston and Sutton Councils agreed to set up a Shared Environment Service made up of
Regulatory Services, including Environmental Health and Trading Standards, Highways &
Transport, including Sustainable Transport, in June 2015, with Kingston as host borough. Key
objectives were to enhance customer service and improve service resilience, while reducing
service cost.

3.2

Implementation of the service commenced in November 2015 and was substantially completed
the following April.

3.3

The review considers current SES performance and makes a number of recommendations to
assist with the achievement of the original objectives and associated opportunities for
improvement.

3.4

The review included the setting up and running of a number of consultation events with staff in
the SES, members of the SES Joint Member Board, councillors and selected external
stakeholders. This work was led by Trudy Worth of Assur, an organisational development
consultancy. Feedback was collected through 1to1 interviews, questionnaires, focus groups and
group discussions. The feedback was extensive and is summarised in Section 4 of the Review
Report in Appendix A, with associated recommendations incorporated into Section 6.

4.

Issues

4.1

The SES Review Report is in Appendix A. The three principal objectives for the SES of
achieving financial savings, maintaining customer satisfaction and ensuring service resilience
have been broadly met over the first full year of operation, despite staff vacancies in Regulatory
Services and a turnover of managers and agency staff in Highways and Transport.

4.2

There have been a number of notable achievements during the year. A £12m 2016/17 joint
capital improvement programme has been established, including Sutton schemes deferred from
2015/16; a new Sutton Parking Strategy has been agreed, with a £1.7m delivery plan; a new Air
Quality Action Plan is being delivered in Kingston; a £7m externally funded flood alleviation
package has been secured; and a successful partnership has been established with NSL for the
delivery of environmental enforcement services across both boroughs.

4.3

A range of potential opportunities for improvement in the SES remain to be fully realised. Chief
amongst these are the integration of ICT systems and mobile working; the introduction of
common processes and procedures; and the introduction of more self-serviced and streamlined
customer enquiry processes.

Page 79

Agenda Item 11

4.4

The present SES governance arrangements are the source of some confusion and the
respective Directors need to jointly look further at these and any required associated
organisational change.
It is also recommended that, in Highways & Transport, the vacant Highways Contracts and
Delivery team leader post is filled and the Strategy and Commissioning team is made a priority
for the appointment of permanent staff.

4.5

A disproportionate focus on reactive work remains an issue and the report identifies a number of
potential actions to address this. These include wider publication of service policies and
standards; greater customer self-help via the website; and more effective one stop shop service
through the contact centres. Councillors need to be provided with service briefing sheets and
regular ward updates to assist them deal directly with constituent enquiries.

4.6

Staff had a wide range of views on the present operation of the SES. While they retained an
underlying commitment to the shared service, they were particularly frustrated at the lack of
progress in rationalising systems and processes and achieving the efficiencies in working
practice that this would bring. They also felt that communication throughout the process had
been poor and that this had caused a lack of understanding and ownership. The staff feedback
highlighted the need to develop a distinct identity for the SES with its own recognisable culture
and way of doing things, informed by a clear set of values and behaviours.

4.7

Staff feedback also highlighted the need for more effective leadership. This should be sought
through the use of defined core leadership attributes and behaviours to deliver the required
culture and performance in the SES, supported by a leadership development programme to
ensure all managers have the necessary skills.

4.8

The meeting with other similar shared services in London revealed that they generally struggled
to achieve the commonly sought efficiencies from shared service operation. All recognised the
need to manage service demand, streamline decision making and to seek new opportunities to
generate additional income as a means of supporting service delivery.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

There are clearly a number of options for the SES at this stage including: continuing as at
present; returning to the previous two borough operation; seeking either an expanded shared
service or external service model; or continuing with the SES but with certain modifications.

5.2 As indicated in the review, the SES has broadly met its principal objectives, but requires a
number of governance, structural, process and behavioural changes to fully realise the potential
of shared service operation. To continue as at present is therefore not a tenable option. To
return to the previous two borough operation would have significant financial consequences,
require a further large TUPE exercise and would lose the benefits already gained. It, too, is not
therefore considered to be a sustainable option. To seek either an expanded shared service or a
service model external to the council, while remaining a possible longer term option, would be
premature at this stage before the shared service has fully realised its existing potential and is in
a strong position to move further forward. This leaves therefore the final option. The SES

Page 80

Agenda Item 11

achievements so far and the recommendations arising from the review, strongly support the
option to continue with the SES but with a focus on completing the delivery of the opportunities
for improvement, reconsidering the commissioning arrangements, some structural management
realignment as determined by Officers and the implementation of a programme of cultural and
behavioural change.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

The SES is designed to deliver the following total revenue savings for the two Councils:
Year
Revenue Saving

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

£650k

£780k

£870k

6.2

The revenue saving for 2016/17 has been built into the SES base budget for this year.

6.3

Funding will need to be sought for any ICT system replacements following the preparation of
appropriate business cases.
Legal

6.4

The creation of the Shared Environment Service was established by Sutton and Kingston
Councils in exercise of their powers under section 1 of the Local Authority (Goods and Services)
Act 1970, sections 111, 112, 113 and 136 of the Local Government Act 1972, section 3 of the
Local Government Act 1999, and section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 and all other enabling
powers.

6.5

As part of the establishment of the shared service, Sutton delegated relevant statutory duties
and functions covering the shared service to Kingston as host authority.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter
A

Title
Shared Environment Service Review Report

Background documents
Shared Environment Service Review - Feedback and recommendations, Assur 15.02.17

Page 81

Agenda Item 11

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 15 March 2017

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Sue Hogg

Legal

Yes

Fiona Thomsen

Other Officers:

Yes

Warren Shadbolt

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

No

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 83

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A
Annex 1

SHARED ENVIRONMENT SERVICE REVIEW REPORT

1. BACKGROUND

2. VISION, BACKGROUND AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR IMPROVEMENT

3. OPPORTUNITIES FOR IMPROVEMENT ANALYSIS

4. STAKEHOLDER CONSULTATION AND FEEDBACK

5. LEARNING FROM OTHER SHARED ENVIRONMENT SERVICES

6. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

February 2017

1

Agenda Item 11

Page 84
Appendix A

SHARED ENVIRONMENT SERVICE REVIEW REPORT

1. BACKGROUND
1.1 In June 2015 Kingston and Sutton councils decided to set up a Shared
Environment Service (SES) which included Environmental Health,Trading Standards,
Sustainable Transport and Highways & Transport. Key objectives were to enhance
customer service and improve service resilience, while reducing service costs. This
decision was taken at a time of continuing change for local government and against a
backcloth of severe financial constraint, increasing demand for many services and with
both councils predicting significant growth over the next 20 years.
1.2 Kingston and Sutton are increasingly seeking service provision through a
commissioned approach, where leadership and accountability is undertaken by a
strategic core and services commissioned to deliver specified outcomes from a mixed
economy of providers. While services will continue to be publicly organised, they will
not always be publicly delivered. The SES was set up in line with this service provision
philosophy.
1.3 In examining options for the SES, a target operating model was chosen which
reflected the commissioning approach being followed by both councils, with services
commissioned and delivered to meet agreed outcomes. Following the appraisal of a
number of different potential delivery options, it was decided that a shared service
offered the best approach at that stage, with a further examination of the business case
for either an expanded shared service to include other councils, or an external model
option to be made at a later stage, once a fully integrated shared service had been
established.
1.4 The implementation of the SES commenced in November 2015 and was
substantially complete by the following April. As we approach the anniversary of full
service operation, this review takes an objective look at how the service is currently
performing and the degree to which the principal objectives behind its establishment
have been realised. It considers the successes the SES has had and identifies areas
for further improvement, to enable the original objectives to be fully achieved.
1.5 The review included the setting up and running of a number of consultation events
with staff in the SES, members of the SES Joint Member Board, the two Chief
Executives, councillors and selected stakeholders. This work was led by Trudy Worth
of Assur, an organisational development consultancy. Meetings were also held with
representatives of three other environment shared services in London to assess how
the Kingston/Sutton service is operating in comparison to these. A further meeting took
place with the Service Director for Regulatory Services at Regional Enterprise, Barnet’s
joint venture with Capita, to see if any useful operational ideas for the SES can be
drawn from this different service model.

2

Page 85

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

2. VISION, OBJECTIVES AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR IMPROVEMENT
2.1 The vision for the Shared Environment Service is:
‘To deliver a shared approach to the commissioning of services, including
Regulatory Services and Highways & Transport, in order to achieve savings
and promote service resilience while retaining service quality and customer
satisfaction.’
2.2 The three principal objectives identified for the SES in this vision are therefore:
● Achieve financial savings
● Ensure service resilience
● Maintain service quality and the level of customer satisfaction
2.3 A number of specific opportunities for improvement were also identified from
shared service operation:
● Increased proactive work: team sizes have reduced as a result of budget
reductions over a number of years, this resulting in a disproportionate focus
on reactive work at the expense of proactive work.
●

Service integration: the potential to consolidate like activities to achieve a
more consistent approach and improve productivity.

●

Improved management: budget reductions have also led to increased
operational activity by managers to the detriment of their principal
management function.

●

Shared specialist resources: service contraction has left gaps in the
specialist resource needed to fully exercise statutory duties.

●

Shared out of hours services: service contraction has made it difficult to
provide full out of hours services.

●

Generic working: shared resources and the introduction of increased generic
working and flexible staff deployment to provide greater service quality and
resilience.

●

Contract management: the consolidation of contract management activity
and expertise to achieve improved service delivery and cost efficiency.

●

Business support: rationalisation of local and core business support
functions to improve the level and quality of support.

●

Customer enquiries: the introduction of more self-service and streamlined
processes in association with a corporate review of the Customer Contact

3

Agenda Item 11

Page 86
Appendix A
Centre. Improved responsiveness to Members, including a consistent
approach to increasing their awareness of Ward activities.

●

ICT: the introduction of modern business systems and technology to assist
mobile working and the integration of systems across the two boroughs.

●

Performance management: t he use of PIs in a consistent manner to hold
service suppliers to account and to identify service areas requiring
improvement.

●

Commercial awareness: t he development of a culture of commercial
awareness of both costs and income as a means of improving efficiency and
contributing to required corporate savings.

2.4 The three principal objectives for the SES: achieve financial savings; maintain
customer satisfaction; and ensure service resilience have been broadly met over the
service’s first year of operation. The required first year saving of £650k has been
delivered. While there is no robust objective measure of customer satisfaction, if the
feedback from the Members who participated in the stakeholder questionnaire is taken
as a proxy for this, service performance overall has been satisfactory. This suggests
stability of performance, despite the significant changes that have taken place and, in
particular, despite the turnover of managers and agency staff in the Highways and
Transport service. With regard to service resilience, there have been notable examples
of improvement, particularly in Regulatory Services.
2.5 In terms of service achievement, there have been a number of significant
highlights during the first year of the SES. A £12m 2016/17 joint Highways & Transport
capital improvement programme has been established, which includes Sutton schemes
deferred from 2015/16; a new Sutton Parking Strategy has been agreed, with a £1.7m
plan to allow delivery to begin awaiting Member approval; a new Air Quality Action Plan
is being delivered in Kingston; a £7m externally funded flood alleviation funding
package has been secured; and a successful partnership has been established with
NSL for the delivery of environmental enforcement services across both boroughs.

3. OPPORTUNITIES FOR IMPROVEMENT ANALYSIS
3.1 The business case supporting the establishment of the SES identified a number of
opportunities for improvement which would support the achievement of the principal
objectives. This section of the review considers these opportunities and the degree to
which they have been realised. The individual opportunities are set out in bold with a
concluding comment for each also shown in bold.
●

Increased focus on proactive work: team sizes have reduced as a result of
budget reductions over a number of years, this resulting in a
disproportionate focus on reactive work at the expense of proactive work.
4

Page 87

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

3.2 While the Strategy and Commissioning and Design and Delivery service
separation in Highways and Transport has been successful in allowing the latter team
to focus on the proactive design and delivery of a common shared works programme,
either directly or through outsourcing to consultants, reactive pressure has remained
disproportionately high in the Strategy and Commissioning team and elsewhere
throughout both parts of the SES. The practice of Members raising responsive issues
directly with officers appears also to be a contributory factor.
3.3 Full realisation of this objective requires reactive service demand to be better
managed. There are a number of initiatives that would help achieve this: clear
definition and publication of service policies and standards; maximisation of service
user self-help via the councils’ websites; maximisation of the utility of contact centres
for successful one stop enquiry/service request handling and closure; service briefing
sheets for Councillors to help them better deal directly with constituent enquiries or to
redirect enquirers to online information on service standards and service request
reporting; agreement to common service standards for enquiry response; better
alignment of Member expectations to service capacity; all Member enquiries to be
centrally recorded before distribution for reply.
3.4 Further work required on service demand management to achieve this
improvement.
●

Service integration: the potential to consolidate like activities to achieve a
more consistent approach and improve productivity.

3.5 There has been some achievement in Regulatory Services, resulting in a more
flexible and resilient service and aided by new recruitment into the existing shared
service. While the co-location of services is desirable in team building terms, it is not
generally practical from existing service bases. This is because of local operational
needs and the potential loss of interaction with other locally based key service
contacts, clients and customers.
3.6 The potential for the co-location of Highways and Transport Design and Delivery
team (to access CAD) and Network Management Streetworks Engineers (for service
efficiency and resilience) is being considered.
3.7 In the absence of significant co-location, regular team meetings and effective and
consistent communication through these are vital to support the single shared service
ethos. The basis for this is in place and Group Managers and Team Leaders have
established effective two centre operation.
3.8 Some successful examples of service integration but constrained by the
need for most services to retain local accessibility, both physically and to other
local service providers, as well as to clients and customers.

5

Agenda Item 11

Page 88
Appendix A

●

Improved management: past budget reductions have led to increased
operational activity by managers to the detriment of their principal
management function.

3.9 Staff vacancies in Regulatory Services during the first year of the shared service,
and a high number and turnover of agency staff and interim managers in Highways and
Transport, have drawn managers into operational management to help maintain
service delivery. In the absence of a specific Commissioning Plan, there is also no
specific link between workload and resource capacity. The recent successful staff
recruitment in Regulatory Services and the arrival of a new permanent Group Manager
for Highways and Transport should support greater team manager attention to
management. The establishment of the SES also highlighted the need for the
supportive management development for Team Leaders and other managers in the
Highways and Transport shared service and a coach-led programme has been put in
place for this.
3.10 Fundamental to improved management is better direct communication through
the channels of group and team management meetings - this is being pursued.
3.11 The review of feedback from service stakeholders has identified the need for
improved leadership from managers and a suggested approach to achieve this is set
out in Section 6.10 of this report.
3.12 While some actions have been taken or are in hand to deliver this
opportunity for improvement, the analysis of stakeholder feedback has identified
a number of additional actions to improve leadership in the shared services.
●

Shared specialist resources: p
 revious service contraction has left gaps in
the specialist resource needed to fully exercise statutory duties.

3.13 These gaps have been particularly pronounced in Regulatory Services where the
shared service has enabled greater service resilience in the food safety, air quality and
contaminated land service areas while staff shortages were addressed.
3.14 Resources from the Highways and Transport Strategy and Commissioning team
were successfully deployed to help prepare the new Sutton Parking Strategy. Staff
resources have also been successfully re-deployed within Strategy and Commissioning
(between the two bases, as well as within each office) to assist with particular peaks in
workload being experienced by various Senior Professional Engineers, and between
the Strategy and Commissioning and Design and Delivery teams.
.
3.15 Experience to date has indicated that significant benefits are achievable
from shared specialist resource.
●

Shared out of hours services: service contraction has made it difficult to
provide full out of hours services.
6

Page 89

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

3.16 No opportunities have yet been realised for shared out of hours services. Two of
the most obvious are winter maintenance and highways, although existing contractual
arrangements and an apparent wish for autonomy in decision making appears to be
inhibiting this. A further opportunity to consider winter maintenance arrangements may
arise in April with Veolia becoming Sutton’s waste contractor or, failing this, in April
2019 when the full South London Waste Partnership with Veolia assumes operation.
Work is underway, however, to seek shared weather forecasting arrangements either
jointly or a London wide TfL initiative. A
 nother obvious potential area is the out of hours
noise service. The present arrangements are Sutton based and reflect those in place at
the commencement of the SES. Consideration will be given to a service covering both
boroughs when Regulatory Services has a full staff complement, subject to budget
availability .
●

Generic working: shared resources and the introduction of increased
generic working and flexible staff deployment to provide greater service
quality and resilience.

3.17 While the introduction of the shared service has assisted in reducing the vestiges
of a ‘silo mentality’ and helped provide service resilience, many staff have specialist
knowledge and have struggled to embrace the concept of generic working.
3.18 Other authority shared services are seeking to introduce generic working in
highway inspection, utility company supervision and highway enforcement, although
this requires considerable staff training. The success or otherwise of such
arrangements should be monitored.
3.19 Some challenging examples of generic working are being pursued by other
shared service authorities and should be watched to see if they are successful
and have potential for the SES.
●

Contract management: t he consolidation of contract management activity
and expertise to achieve improved service delivery and cost efficiency.

3.20 Contract consolidation offers the potential for contract rate savings and
management efficiencies from the inherent economies of scale. This is however, only
achievable when existing contracts are managed to co-terminate, normally through the
appropriate arrangement of contract extensions.These opportunities have yet to arise
with the SES major highways and street lighting contracts.
3.21 The SES is in the process of re-letting the Sutton highways and street lighting
contracts and the opportunity is being sought for both shorter term contract flexibility
and longer term contract consolidation when Kingston's equivalent contracts terminate.
3.22 There are current contract management issues with both existing street lighting
contracts. These fall under the responsibility of the Highways Contracts and Delivery
7

Agenda Item 11

Page 90
Appendix A

Team Leader post which is currently vacant. A suitable strategy to deal with these is
being sought.
3.23 Although small scale by comparison, Regulatory Services have established a
joint contract for stray dogs. The procurement processes for this appeared
disproportionate for the scale of the contract and suggest the potential for a more
streamlined process.
3.24 The opportunity to achieve this improvement for the major contracts has
yet to arise but is being anticipated in re-let contracts. The potential to
streamline procurement processes for small contracts may warrant corporate
consideration.
●

Business support: rationalisation of local and core business support
functions to improve the level and quality of support.

3.25 Feedback from staff and managers indicates a lack of satisfaction with the
current level of service from corporate business support teams and the priority given to
SES requirements. This indicates the need for a further dialogue with these teams to
review the present division of labour and see how this might be optimized within
available resources.
3.26 A review of the Technical Operations Team in Highways and Transport was
undertaken in May 2016 and resultant action plan, including savings targets, still needs
to be delivered. Moreover, as the new approach to shared service delivery becomes
embedded, aspects of the action plan itself will need reviewing and updating.
3.27 Current business support arrangements are not fully adequate and a
continued dialogue needs to take place with both corporate business support
teams to understand how they can better support the shared service.
●

Customer enquiries: the introduction of more self-service and streamlined
processes in association with a corporate review of the Customer Contact
Centre. Improved responsiveness to Members, including a consistent
approach to increasing their awareness of Ward activities.

3.28 The quality and timeliness of replies to Member enquiries was an initial problem
for the SES. Additional temporary resource has been successfully deployed to resolve
this and a review undertaken of current correspondence processes. A new system for
correspondence management in Highways and Transport has been approved by the
Environment Commissioners, with discussions ongoing in relation to Regulatory
Services.
3.29 The volume of member enquiries in Sutton continues to be disproportionately
high. Engagement with the Portfolio Holder would be worthwhile to explore how this
volume might be managed, including better provision of information to Ward
8

Page 91

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

Councillors to enable them to deal with constituents’ enquiries directly, or to redirect
constituents to self-help online services.
3.30 The current corporate review of Customer Contact Centre provision offers the
opportunity to seek to maximise the Centre's ability to act as a more effective one stop
shop for routine customer enquiries.
.
3.31 All opportunities need to be taken to assist the management of customer
enquiries and service requests, through the online publication of service policies and
standards and the maximisation of service user self-help via the council websites.
3.32 While the SES is now delivering a higher level of service for Member
enquiries and a new correspondence system for Highways and Transport is in
the process of being implemented, further action is required to better manage
enquiry demand through the provision of additional service information to Ward
Councillors, website self-service and more effective Customer Contact Centre
operation.
●

ICT:  the introduction of modern business systems and technology to assist
mobile working and the integration of systems across the two boroughs.

3.33 This remains one of the greatest impediments to realisation of a fully effective
shared service and the most frequently raised issue by staff and managers. Access to
drives and printers from partner offices continues to be a problem and source of
considerable frustration and ineffective operation. The two councils continue to operate
different software systems for the same areas of service provision.
3.34 The establishment of the SES has not had the benefit of a comprehensive
associated ICT implementation plan to deliver the system standardisation and support
needed by the shared service. A list of both strategic and local ICT issues has been
prepared and discussed with the Interim Head of the ICT shared service. A dedicated
project resource is being put in place to respond to the issues and progress work to
integrate ICT across the shared service.
3.35 ICT rationalisation is always a significant complication and challenge in
establishing shared services and needs a supported, proactive and resourced
plan to deliver the required change. The integration of basic software systems
remains a top priority.
●

Performance management: the use of PIs in a consistent manner to hold
service suppliers to account and to identify service areas requiring
improvement.

3.36 A single common Highways and Transport capital programme has been
prepared with a RAG status performance monitor and requires robust management
oversight to ensure any inherent risks are proactively identified and managed. This will
9

Agenda Item 11

Page 92
Appendix A

need to be looked at again once the outturn position on the 2016/17 programme is
known.
3.37 An agreed common set of performance indicators still needs to be put in place.
Not all those contained in the draft Service Level Agreement have yet been agreed,
and there are resource implications in doing so. This is further impeded by the different
monitoring systems in use by the two councils.
3.38 The absence of robust performance data has made it difficult to objectively
monitor trends in SES performance.
3.39 Meaningful common performance standards and performance indicators
remain to be put in place.
●

Commercial awareness: the development of a culture of commercial
awareness of both costs and income as a means of improving efficiency and
contributing to required corporate savings

3.40 The focus during the first year has been to establish the new shared service and
maintain service delivery. Opportunities for the potential provision of additional charged
for services have however been identified in Regulatory Services. Highways and
Transport fees and charges have been reviewed in Sutton and the opportunity taken to
introduce some new fees and gain income.
3.41 The meetings with other authority shared services and the Joint Venture
Regulatory Service in Barnet has revealed that they are all actively seeking new
commercial opportunities to sell services. Most have recognised a need to seek
external expertise to work with them in realising potential commercial opportunities.
3.42 Where there is an existing opportunity for additional income generation, for
example in providing pre-planning advice to developers, there is commonly an issue as
to which service this income is credited. It should go to the individual service provider
to as a matter of equity and to encourage income maximisation.
3.43 In addition to generating income, early decisions looked at maximising use of
external consultants in some areas where work fluctuates and where a full complement
of in house staff is driving up costs and potentially limiting expertise. This model needs
to be examined in more detail and if appropriate, taken forward.
3.44 There is a particular appetite for pursuing new commercial opportunities in
Regulatory Services subject to available capacity. Certain other local authorities
are known to offer well developed commercial services and we should seek to
learn from their experience. Opportunities need to be looked at further in
Highways and Transport both in terms of generating income but also in using
alternative models of delivery where outsourcing of some work may be more
appropriate.
10

Page 93

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

3.45 While there has been some realisation of the opportunities for improvement,
further action is required if these are to be more fully achieved. This should form part of
a timetabled implementation plan along with the other recommendations arising from
the review.

4. STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK
4.1 As part of the review, feedback on the SES was sought from a range of
stakeholder groups including:
● SES Management Board - Directors and Commissioners
● SES Service Managers
● SES Staff
● Councillors on the SES Member Board
● Councillors (selection)
● External stakeholders
Feedback was collected through 1to1 interviews, questionnaires, focus groups and
group discussions. This work was led by Trudy Worth of Assur and the
recommendations arising from it incorporated into Section 6 of this report.
SES Management Board interviews
4.2. The Management Board retained a strong commitment to the SES and recognised
a number of significant first year achievements, including the delivery of the year 1
savings target, the resolution of past LIP delivery issues and introduction of more
robust reporting and project tracking in Highways and Transport.
4.3 On reflection, the Board felt that in setting up the service, insufficient attention had
been given to involving and communicating with staff and to the challenge of bringing
the different service cultures together. This was seen as a continuing issue. Certain
service weaknesses in Highways and Transport had also not been adequately
anticipated, although an improvement plan had been put in place to address these.
4.4. The Board were aware that limited progress had been made in addressing the
originally identified opportunities for improvement, with particular reference to the
integration of service processes and procedures and ICT systems. Both represented
impediments to fully effective shared service working. Greater clarification of
governance arrangements and the commissioning role was also needed.
4.5. In terms of the two services, the Board felt that Regulatory Services were
performing well with the potential to develop a more commercial approach and to move
away from the past more traditional service focus. Highways and Transport had
experienced a difficult start with the absence of a permanent Group Manager and the
challenge for Team Leaders and staff of moving to a commissioning role. The

11

Agenda Item 11

Page 94
Appendix A

considerable committee reporting requirements in Kingston also impacted on the
operation of Highways and Transport.
Highways and Transport managers focus group
4.6 Service Managers felt that communication and consultation during the formative
stage of the SES was inadequate, particularly in regard to service operation. The
strategic vision and objectives for the service lacked clarity and were not readily
accessible to and owned by staff, nor was there a clearly articulated culture for the new
service.
4.7 The establishment of the SES lacked and is still lacking a detailed implementation
plan, and a lack of support from outside the service. There had been little or no
integration of ICT systems and no establishment of common processes and
procedures. Both were a source of frustration and confusion to staff.
4.8 Service expectations had been set too high for the available resource, particularly
given the turnover in managers and agency staff and the ongoing absence of one
Team Leader. Committee processes were seen as particularly time consuming.
4.9 The initial SLA needed to be refreshed to provide greater clarity of service
requirements and to be supported by an annual service or business plan.
4.10 With split teams, time was lost travelling with inadequate hot desking facilities in
Denmark Road.
Regulatory Services managers focus group
4.11 Regulatory Services managers were comfortable with the rapid pace of the initial
change but had wished it to have been more operational manager scoped. The further
restructure in April 2016 had proved unnecessarily unsettling for staff. Managers found
the governance arrangements unduly cumbersome and wished to see greater
empowerment.
4.12 There was a concern that the change had been driven by financial savings not
operational need and, that it had lacked a phased implementation plan. The high initial
vacancy rate had only recently seen some improvement.
4.13 ICT systems were still awaiting integration and problems with access and shared
drives continued. Procedures and processes had not been standardised. Inadequate
arrangements for personal travel were affecting service productivity.
4.14 The shared service had yet to establish its own identity.

Highways and Transport staff survey
12

Page 95

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

4.15   Staff want regular service and team meetings to aid communication and to
provide a better understanding of what they are meant to be doing, why and how they
should be doing it. More clarity is required about the vision and objectives for the SES
and how the staff can contribute to this. This also applies to the SES structure and
team roles and responsibilities, where clarity is required to avoid any potential
duplication.
4.16 The turnover in senior managers and their capability limitations had adversely
affected the service. Managers are seen as too aloof and as having failed to properly
involve staff in change management, despite the desire of staff to make the new
arrangements work. Staff felt undervalued, overstretched and not listened to.
4.17 Staff needed improved and integrated ICT; its absence, and poor ICT support
generally, was seen to be adversely affecting their ability to deliver the service and to
be causing undue stress. There was a similar feeling about the need to integrate
policies and procedures.
4.18 In the absence of stable management to provide direction and focus, staff
considered the service under-resourced. Some poor and ill informed decisions were
perceived to have adversely impacted on workloads and performance. Permanent staff
needed to be recruited to fill vacant posts.
4.19 Corporate business support was seen as currently inadequate and inhibiting a
more commercial approach to income generation - arrangements needed to be
reviewed to ensure that opportunities were not being missed.
Regulatory Services staff survey
4.20 The responses from Regulatory Services staff were more positive in both
quantitative and qualitative terms than those from Highways and Transport.
4.21 They welcomed regular all-service meetings which provided a good opportunity
to network. They too wished to have more clarity around the vision and objectives and
how each team could best contribute to their achievement. Staff vacancies needed to
be filled.
4.22 Team Leaders should be actively seeking the best practice from the two
boroughs and new ways of working. Leadership generally needed to have a higher
profile and to show its support for the services and that they are valued.
4.23 ICT attracted the highest number of comments - staff wanted a high quality,
integrated ICT system with a shared drive and database accessible by all.

13

Agenda Item 11

Page 96
Appendix A

4.24 Regulatory staff wished to see far greater service integration, the adoption of
common standards and procedures, and more opportunity to work in the other
borough.
4.25 Corporate business support in Kingston was seen as inadequate and as was the
Contact Centre which passed through unrelated calls and failed to set up records
correctly.
Staff discussion groups
4.26 120 staff attended a half-day event which took the form of two small group
discussion sessions to:
● Review the first 12 months of the SES and what had gone well and less well.
● Look forward and consider the changes and developments necessary to make
the SES more effective including what people could do individually/in their
teams.
4.27 In terms of what had gone well, staff believed that the natural synergies between
RBK and LBS were being successfully leveraged with greater programme coordination
and improved programme performance, more efficient working with less duplication
while also delivering the required savings. Staff were largely positive about the SES,
working together and supporting each other. The SES offered the opportunity to work
with and learn from new colleagues and to share experience, ideas and best practice.
It was felt that the transition was achieved without major upheaval and that staff were
going out of their way to deliver services under challenging circumstances.
4.28 There was greater feedback on what had gone less well with ICT;
communication; staffing; integration and processes; geography; leadership; and
culture emerging as key themes. A number of these are clearly interconnected.
4.29 ICT was the source of greatest complaint by staff, with shared drive access,
mobile technology unfit for purpose, database integration and poor ICT support all
stated. ICT was seen as a hindrance to work around rather than an enabler.
4.30 Communication was the next most significant issue. Staff felt they did not hear
enough from management generally and, in particular, about the vision and objectives
for the SES and about how the shared service was doing. The consultation that had
taken place with staff was considered cosmetic.
4.31 The high number of unfilled vacancies was a recurrent and strong theme. The
use of and turnover in agency staff and interim managers put additional pressure on
permanent staff. A reduction in staff and an increasing workload had resulted in an
undue focus on reactive work. Staff were also seeking greater clarity about their roles
and responsibilities.

14

Page 97

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

4.32 Feedback from a number of groups reflected a feeling that there had been little
integration and a lack of a shared identity. Locality based working made it difficult to
work across the two boroughs and to move to consistency in ways of working.
4.33 The distance between the two boroughs, as well as being seen as a barrier to
integration, represented a travel challenge both in terms of the amount of time required
and practical issues like parking.
4.34 Concerns were raised about the quality of management, lack of leadership and
management visibility within the SES, possibly as a result of the number of interim
managers. Managers lacked an understanding of current working pressures. It was felt
there needed to be more realism and support to staff in managing expectations,
particularly those of Members.
4.35 Staff feedback on a number of themes suggests that the SES has yet to
establish a distinctive and integrated culture. Communication and the way people are
managed and led will also be impacting on culture, as will the levels of engagement
and involvement people feel.
External stakeholder interviews
4.36 Feedback was obtained from four external stakeholders with different
connections to the SES. All were largely satisfied with their relationships, these being
based on already established personal relationships, and despite not receiving any
formal communication explaining the formation of the SES. Stakeholders reported
some initial inertia, problems understanding who is responsible for what and concern
about reduced staff numbers. Matters had however since improved.
4.37 Both Highways and Transport stakeholders (TfL and Kier) understood the
challenges facing local government. They reported less bureaucracy, more focussed
working and a growing sense of partnership working. Some concern was expressed
about budget management, with this attributed to the turnover in managers, and about
future service resilience.
4.38 Regulatory Services stakeholders considered programme management and
reporting to be effective, with regular meetings. Some concern was however expressed
about SES staff taking ownership without matters having to go through multiple layers.
Member interviews and questionnaires
4.39 Member feedback was based on a sample of only nine members, seven from
Sutton and two from Kingston, as only half of those approached responded.
4.40 While Members did not show a consistent understanding of the SES, they were
supportive of the shared service approach, particularly in the light of the financial
challenges facing local government. They also appreciated the staff recruitment
15

Agenda Item 11

Page 98
Appendix A

difficulties the SES faced. They would welcome more clarity on the structure and
regularly updated staff charts.
4.41 Overall service performance was only considered to be satisfactory and there
was a feeling that LBS was less well served than RBK.
4.42 The majority of the feedback related to Highways and Transport, where the
quality of the work delivered was considered good, but too often behind schedule.
Members felt that inadequate updates were provided on both issues and projects
which they therefore had to chase.
4.43 Those responding felt there was a need for a greater focus on individual wards
rather than the bigger picture. They also had concerns about the strict application of
criteria and policies in officers considering Members’ requests, which tended to exclude
local values Members could add. Officer responses to enquiries were often felt to be
too technical and suggestive of a defence mechanism designed to deflect their
requests.
4.44 Staffing difficulties and turnover appeared to result in issues not being dealt with
and occasionally in poorly briefed officer attendance at meetings. Members expressed
a willingness to change their ways of working so they could assist as much as possible.
4.45 Members on the SES Joint Member Board believed that there was a strong and
positive relationship between the two councils and that individuals worked well
together. Board attendance was however inconsistent.

5. LEARNING FROM OTHER SHARED ENVIRONMENT SERVICES
Background
5.1 As part of the review, meetings were held with representatives of three other
authority environment shared services in London to discuss how their services were
operating and to see what lessons might be learnt for the SES. As part of this exercise
the degree to which the other shared services had managed to achieve the
opportunities for improvements being sought from the Kingston/Sutton SES was also
explored.
5.2 Meetings took place with two highways and transport shared services: Kensington
and Chelsea, the lead authority for their shared service operation with Hammersmith
and Fulham (previously known as the bi-borough service); and the Richmond and
Wandsworth Shared Staffing Arrangement (SSA). Kensington and Chelsea shared
service commenced in 2014, while the Richmond and Wandsworth SSA only formally
started in October 2016 and is therefore still very much in its early stages. For
Regulatory Services a meeting was held with Merton, the host authority for the shared
regulatory service set up with Richmond in August 2014.
16

Page 99

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

5.3 A meeting was also held with Barnet to discuss their different Joint Venture model
of service provision for regulatory services, to see if there were any useful
organisational or operational ideas for the SES.
Merton and Richmond Shared Regulatory Service
5.4 The shared service commenced in August 2014 with Merton as host authority.
While Croydon had also been party to the preparatory work for the shared service, they
decided not to participate. Following the recent establishment of the Richmond and
Wandsworth SSA, discussions are presently underway with Wandsworth with a view to
them joining the shared service. This would be in line with their Target Operating Model
(TOM) to expand the shared service to include other councils.
5.5 The following points are worthy of note:
● number of managers reduced from 12 to 5 on the establishment of the shared
service.
● service is risk based and intelligence led - not all complaints investigated.
● shared service reports quarterly to a Joint Regulatory Committee on
performance and information items only - this has raised the profile of the
service.
● Wandsworth have more formal committee arrangements.
● dual IT systems are still operated pending identification of new system that can
provide for shared service operation and mobile/home working.
● shared service operation seen as an attraction for staff recruitment.
● shared service operation has permitted expertise sharing on contaminated land
and air quality.
● co-location seen as ideal managerially but Members want locally based staff.
● complaints/enquiries are to move to web-based only as part of the TOM with
websites redesigned to simplify navigation.
● Merton administrative support is dedicated given specialist knowledge needed Richmond is hub-based and not considered effective.
● further savings to be achieved - commercial opportunities being investigated
with possible marketing assistance.
● use Kingdom Security for litter enforcement with contract to be extended to
include ASB.
5.6 This shared service is now well established and operating risk based and
intelligence led services with light touch committee reporting. Dedicated administrative
support is considered most effective given service complexities. Dual IT systems
remain in operation pending the availability of suitable software to support shared
service operation and mobile working. Further savings are being sought through
streamlining the enquiry process, growing third party enforcement, the addition of a
further borough to the shared service and the provision of fee earning commercial
services.
17

Agenda Item 11

Page 100
Appendix A

Richmond and Wandsworth Shared Traffic and Engineering Service
5.7 The shared service has a staff establishment of 50 and covers planned highways
maintenance, drainage and flood management, highway structures, street lighting,
traffic management, parking management, parking contract and CCTV. The service is
managed by an Assistant Director, reporting to the Director of Environment and
Community Services. The establishment was determined by a financial savings target.
To achieve this there were staffing reductions at all levels.
5.8 The following points are worthy of note:
● service policies and standards being put in place to better manage reactive
requests and enable priority proactive work to be progressed.
● co-termination of major contracts being sought to enable additional savings to be
made.
● single ‘box’ being planned for enquiries to ensure all are recorded and managed.
● use of framework contract to draw off specialist consultant staff when potential
external funding more than covers their cost and gives net income to the shared
service.
● corporate invest to save funding being sought to fund required ICT changes.
● separate invest to save funding being sought to deliver solution to income loss
problem with potential for significant service income gain after investment
payback.
● formal decision making already streamlined in Richmond but not in Wandsworth.
5.9 With a net loss of staff resource, specific attempts are being made to have
policies and service standards in place to manage reactive service requests and
enable a proactive work focus. The shared service actively seeks additional income
sources, even small amounts, as a means of bringing in new money to support the
service. In this regard the shared service is seeking to follow the Ealing practice and
ensure it receives credit for provision of chargeable pre-planning advice.
Kensington and Chelsea Shared Highways and Transport Service
5.10 This is a shared service contract with Hammersmith and Fulham only and
previously known as the bi-borough contract. It commenced in 2012, covers highways,
transport and parking and has a staff complement of 190, including 50 CEOs in H&F.
The shared service is managed by the Director for Transport and Highways who
reports to the Chief Executives of both councils.
5.11 The following points are worthy of note:
●
●

establishment of shared service preceded by 6 months grassroots service review
with staff to decide best practice and followed by 6 months change plan.
three services co-located: highways, network management and parking.
18

Page 101

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

call-off partnership contract with Project Centre for design resources currently
employing 10.
fast formal decision making in K&C via decision report to fortnightly Cabinet
Member meeting.
lengthier multi-stage formal decision making in H&F.
separate operation of both winter maintenance and out of hours services.
working with H&F Commercial Director to identify new income streams.
contract consolidation not achieved.
policy alignment not achieved given current different political administrations.
ICT standardisation planned but not yet achieved.

5.12 Detailed preparatory work with staff assisted buy in and ownership of shared
service. It also allowed identification of best practice in each borough for adoption as
common processes.The geography of the two boroughs has facilitated co-location of
selected services. As with other shared services, new income streams are actively
being pursued.
Barnet Regulatory Services Joint Venture
5.13 The Regulatory Services Joint Venture forms part of a larger joint venture with
Barnet for the provision of environmental and regeneration services. The present
service manager was previously employed by the council and fully involved in the
setting up of the joint venture before being transferred under TUPE to the new service.
5.14 The following points are worthy of note:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

contract has 19 KPIs with financial penalties for non-achievement - acts as
major incentive to staff to meet service performance targets.
contract includes share arrangement for surplus income.
trading standards operate on risk based approach
commercial opportunities (not specified) being pursued with specialist help from
elsewhere in parent company.
participating in Food Standards Agency pilot re-rating charging scheme which is
generating additional income.
will provide consultancy or other services (e.g. food inspections) to LAs.
use Idox Uniform software for compatibility with other contracts.
software now capable of supporting mobile working with Ipad option.

5.15 The Regulatory Service, along with the whole of the joint venture, has a strong
focus on income generation. Re-rating charging is seen as a future potential
opportunity, subject to the present pilot schemes outcome. In exploring commercial
opportunities the service draws on parent company expertise and is considering the
setting up of a dedicated commercial team. While they therefore clearly see
commercial opportunities, they would not be drawn on what these were for their own
commercial reasons. Team performance has improved in the joint venture, with the
potential of financial penalties a strong incentive to staff.
19

Agenda Item 11

Page 102
Appendix A

5.16 The meetings with other boroughs showed that all had struggled to achieve some
of the commonly sought benefits and efficiencies from shared service operation which
equate to our own opportunities for improvement. There were common traits of seeking
to try and manage service demand and streamline decision making, with evidence of a
robust approach being taken because of reduced staffing resource. All have struggled
with ICT system rationalisation. Faced with challenging budgets, all were looking for
new opportunities to generate additional income to support their services both by
ensuring any existing income due was correctly credited and by seeking new
commercial opportunities, very often with the support of marketing expertise.

6. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1 It was envisaged that the first phase in establishing the SES would be over 2-3
years and allow the development of a fully integrated shared service adopting modern
working practices. This would provide a strong platform to allow the shared service to
consider the best delivery model to allow it to move further forward, possibly through
the expansion to include other councils or through the establishment of a jointly owned
shared service vehicle.
6.2 While the principal objectives for the SES may have been broadly met, the
opportunities for improvement, also sought from the establishment of the shared
service, remain to be fully realised. The first year of operation has been characterised
by a manager focus on maintaining service delivery through the new shared service
which, in Regulatory Services, had significant vacancies and, in Highways and
Transport, lacked a stable management team and had ongoing turnover in agency
staff. Progress on addressing the opportunities for improvement was also hampered by
the absence of a detailed implementation plan for process integration. The potential for
these improvements however remains and their achievement, through team leaders
and managers, should enable the presently perceived satisfactory service to
significantly improve and the SES to realise its full potential.
Recommendation 1: The SES should seek to consolidate the successes so far
achieved through a programme to complete the delivery of the original
opportunities for improvement together with the other recommendations arising
from this review.
6.3 As set out in Section 2, the SES has, in its first year of operation, broadly met the
principal objectives set out in the original business case, as well as achieving a number
of notable successes. These have however not always received wider recognition.
Recommendation 2: Proactively seek publicity for appropriate SES service
achievements with internal and external audiences as a means of raising the
profile of and promoting the SES.
20

Page 103

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

6.4 Stakeholder feedback indicated a degree of confusion about the governance
arrangements for the SES, including the role of the Commissioners and the basis for
the commissioning of services from the SES. The respective Directors need to jointly
look further at these and any required associated organisational change. The existing
SLA needs to be refreshed and supported by an annual business plans for the two
services in the SES.
Recommendation 3: Review the present governance arrangements for the SES
including any required associated organisational change.
6.5 While Regulatory Services has operated without agency staff and is progressively
recruiting to an established staff complement, Highways and Transport has an ongoing
Highways Contracts and Delivery Team Leader vacancy and a present agency level of
25%. The service span for the Group Manager is very wide compared to other
boroughs and this post requires the support of a full complement of Team Leaders.
There are also some additional staff resources in Highways and Transport that are
outwith the establishment. A decision needs to be made on how to deal with this extra
staff resource which will otherwise become a budget pressure, once the vacant Team
Leader post is filled.
Recommendation 4: Recruit to the vacant Highways Contracts and Delivery
Team Leader post and resolve all posts that do not sit within the permanent
structure.
6.6 The Strategy and Commissioning team sits at a fulcrum in the service. It deals on
one side with policy development; input to development control; committee reporting;
local, neighbourhood and resident committee attendance; correspondence; and
Member and FoI enquiries. This requires staff with good local knowledge and strong
written and oral communication skills. On the other side it commissions scheme design
and delivery from the Design and Delivery team. This span of operation calls for
particularly high calibre multi-skilled engineers and this team should therefore be a
priority for the recruitment of permanent staff with the requisite skills.
Recommendation 5: Seek to strengthen the Strategy and Commissioning team
by recruiting suitably skilled permanent staff to vacant establishment posts and
addressing any expertise deficit.
6.7 Section 4 of this report set out the feedback received from the various
stakeholders consulted as part of the review. A number of common traits emerged from
the analysis of the feedback and these are considered in the following paragraphs
together with resulting recommendations.
6.8 It was evident from staff feedback that there is a lack of understanding of the
vision, direction and objectives for the SES, with some staff seeing it simply as a
transactional savings exercise in the absence of a clearer narrative.
21

Agenda Item 11

Page 104
Appendix A

Recommendation 6: The Board needs to develop a strategic narrative to enable
staff to better understand the vision and objectives for the SES and their role
and contribution in successfully achieving these.
6.9 Within the shared service is a strong feeling of staff wanting to know where they
now belong, with their affiliations to their original authorities still prevalent. There is a
need to develop a distinct identity for the SES with its own recognisable culture and
way of doing things, informed by a clear set of values and behaviours. Developing a
distinctive, strong and vibrant culture should assist with both the retention of existing
and attracting new staff.
Recommendation 7: Define the desired culture for the SES, the required
behaviours in that culture and a plan to communicate these.
6.10 The need for improved management came from both areas of the service and,
in view of the associated issues of culture and engagement, is best addressed in the
frame of leadership. While there are examples of both good and poor leadership in the
SES, those in management positions will have mixed experience and/or capability in
managing and leading people. If there is a capability deficit, managers are unlikely to
be adequately managing and leading their teams, but focussing on delivering tasks.
Until manager capability is assessed and any deficit addressed, the opportunity for
managers to spend more time focussed on management will not be realised.
Furthermore, any managers resistant to change and new ways of working, risk creating
disengaged teams which underperform and have high staff turnover.
Recommendation 8: Using the defined leadership core attributes and behaviours
needed to deliver the required culture and performance in the SES, assess all
managers against these and prepare leadership development plans to address
any deficits. Include a leadership objective in each manager’s annual appraisal
objectives.
Recommendation 9: Use the identified core attributes and behaviours in defining
the person specification for any manager recruitment.
6.11 Communication was identified as an ongoing issue, with a desire for staff to be
better informed, listened to and more involved. Clear, consistent and, as far as
possible, two-way communication is an essential part of any changes to culture and
management and is a core leadership responsibility. An engaging communication
capability needs to be incorporated in leadership development to ensure managers
have the necessary skills.
Recommendation 10: Review communications from the Board down, to define
key needs, style and tone and a cascade process that incorporates two-way
engagement.

22

Page 105

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

Recommendation 11: Incorporate an engaging communication capability in
leadership development.
6.12 Improved communication can be further supported in a number of ways including
the maintenance of an up to date people, roles and responsibilities staff directory,
regular interactive staff events and the publication of service achievements for wider
internal and external audiences as already recommended.
6.13 The need for effective systems and processes was a common theme from staff
feedback. The originally envisaged review and streamlining of systems, practices and
processes has not been achieved, with the continued use of inherited systems adding
to workload and causing staff frustration. ICT in particular is seen as a hindrance to,
rather than an enabler of, effective working. Staff need to be fully engaged in the
review of systems and processes giving them the opportunity to work with new
colleagues, share ideas and best practice, and fully buy into the resulting outcomes.
Resolution of these issues would demonstrate that the concerns raised by staff have
been recognised and acted upon.
Recommendation 12:  Agree a prioritised programme to address outstanding ICT
issues and the resources for its delivery.
Recommendation 13: Review and as far as possible consolidate policies,
processes and procedures with full staff involvement and leadership from
managers to ensure engagement with and ownership of the outcomes.
6.14 Feedback received was critical of the support afforded to the SES by corporate
services and in particular ICT, business support and the contact centres. ICT is
covered by a separate recommendation above. The original opportunities for
improvement identified potential scope in both the other areas. For business support
there is a need to both implement the agreed changes to the Technical Operations
Team and to have an ongoing dialogue with Corporate Business Support to improve
the level and quality of support to the SES. In terms of the contact centres, the
introduction of more self-serviced and streamlined enquiry processes was to be sought
as part of the corporate contact centre review. This is particularly important in seeking
to achieve a greater focus on proactive work in the SES.
Recommendation 14: The Technical Operations Team needs to fully implement
the changes identified when the team was created in May 2016, and there needs
to be an ongoing dialogue with Corporate Business Support to identify potential
areas for improved support.
Recommendation 15: Maximise the opportunity for customers to self-service by
accessing service policies, standards and reporting processes through the
councils’ websites.

23

Agenda Item 11

Page 106
Appendix A

Recommendation 16: Seek to facilitate contact centre ability to act as an
effective one stop shop in dealing with routine enquiries.
6.15 A consistent theme across manager and staff feedback was the need to better
manage Member expectations, particularly if a greater focus on proactive work is to be
achieved. While Member feedback was supportive of the shared service as a model
for service provision, there was an evident disconnect with some of the inherent
consequences needed to deliver the associated operational efficiencies. For example,
it appears that attempts by officers to properly consider Member requests against
current policies and criteria for intervention are being interpreted as unhelpful and
obstructive. Members were rightly critical of a failure of the service to keep them
updated on issues and projects affecting their Wards. This need was recognised in one
of the original opportunities for improvement which sought a consistent approach to
increasing Member awareness of Ward activities.
Recommendation 17: Use the outcome of the review to agree a protocol for the
future way of the SES works with Members that reflects council priorities,
service capacity and Ward Member needs.
6.16 The meetings with other shared service authorities showed that all had struggled
to achieve some of the commonly sought benefits and efficiencies from shared service
operation. All had a focus on seeking to manage service demand and to streamline
decision making, with evidence of a robust approach being taken. All have struggled
with ICT system rationalisation. Faced with challenging budgets, all were looking for
new opportunities to generate additional income to support their services, both by
ensuring any existing income due was correctly credited and by seeking new
commercial opportunities, very often with the support of marketing expertise.
Periodically sharing experience with other shared services should be mutually
beneficial as all such services continue to seek to optimize the operation of this service
model.
Recommendation 18: Maintain contacts with other London based shared service
authorities to collectively seek to optimise the operation of and benefits from
this service model.
6.17 There are clearly a number of options for the SES at this stage including:

continuing as at present; returning to the previous two borough operation;
seeking either an expanded shared service or external service model; or
continuing with the SES but with certain modifications.

6.18 As indicated in the review, the SES has broadly met its principal
objectives, but requires a number of governance, structural, process and
behavioural changes to fully realise the potential of shared service operation.
To continue as at present is therefore not a tenable option. To return to the
previous two borough operation would have significant financial consequences,
24

Page 107

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

require a further large TUPE exercise and would lose the benefits already
gained. It, too, is not therefore considered to be a sustainable option. To seek
either an expanded shared service or a service model external to the council,
while remaining a possible longer term option, would be premature at this stage
before the shared service has fully realised its existing potential and is in a
strong position to move further forward. This leaves therefore the final option.
The SES achievements so far and the recommendations arising from the
review, strongly support the option to continue with the SES but with a focus on
completing the delivery of the opportunities for improvement, reconsidering the
commissioning arrangements, some structural management realignment as
determined by Officers and the implementation of a programme of cultural and
behavioural change.

Graham Beattie
Interim Transformation and Change Manager

25

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 109

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 12

Environment and Neighbourhood
Date:
30 March 2017
Committee
Local Implementation Plan Funding Settlement 2017/18
Mary Morrissey - Strategic Director Environment, Housing &
Regeneration
Borough wide
Councillor Jill Whitehead
Ian Price, Team Leader Strategy and Commissioning, 020 8547 5934
● An Open Council
● A Green Council
Open
Date:

15 March 2017

1.

Summary

1.1

This report outlines Transport for London’s (TfL’s) allocation to the Council of Local
Implementation Plan (LIP) funding for 2017/18. A description of TfL’s transport related
programmes is given and how schemes were selected to be put forward for funding. The details
of the specific indicative allocations for individual schemes are listed in Appendix A and
described in the report

2.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Environment and Neighbourhoods Committee:

2.1

Agree that the schemes and measures detailed in this report receiving LIP funding become part
of the Highways and Transport work programme for 2017/18;

2.2

Agree to incur capital expenditure of £2.212m for the capital schemes identified in the LIP
settlement for 2017/18 so that schemes can proceed. A sum of £0.168m for various revenue
initiatives which has been approved for 2017/18 and is included in the revenue estimates.

2.3

Agree to allocate the £0.1m Local Transport Funding element of the settlement to Local
Committees on a per capita basis;

Agenda Item 12

Page 110

2.4

Authorise the Executive Head of Safer and Stronger Communities to take all necessary steps to
implement the schemes, including commencing any necessary statutory consultations.

3.

Background

3.1

The LIP is Sutton Council’s Transport Plan for the borough and was updated in 2013 to cover
detailed transport proposals for the three financial years 2014/15 to 2016/17. TfL have advised
that 2017/18 will be treated as an extension to the existing LIP, and funding awarded on an
interim basis until the new Mayor’s Transport Strategy and new LIP Guidance is in place. The
LIP also sets out a longer term transport plan up to 2031. The LIP is Sutton’s contribution to the
Mayor’s overall Transport Plan for London.

3.2

TfL have advised that the settlement and arrangements for the years beyond 2017/18 will be
determined and announced ahead of the start of the 2017/18 financial year. This is to enable
TfL to engage more fully with Boroughs on the new Mayor’s transport priorities.

3.3

This discussion will be guided by the ‘Healthy Streets’ agenda, outlined in the Mayor’s recent
‘City for all Londoners’ document. This new approach aims to prioritise active travel, making
walking, cycling and public transport use the best choices for travel, encouraging the most
efficient methods of essential travel for people and goods, and creating more attractive,
accessible and people-friendly streets. TfL want to work with boroughs over the coming year to
expand on this agenda and use it to build on the strong history of borough delivery on these key
areas.

3.4

TfL have further advised that in the meantime, it is expected that a consultation draft of the new
Mayor’s Transport Strategy (MTS) will be issued this Spring. Alongside this, TfL will also
publish a consultation on the preparation of new LIPs.

4.

Funding Submission Consultation and Assessment Process

4.1

All Ward Councillors were invited to put forward schemes for inclusion in the 2015/16 spending
submission. The list of proposals was produced by ‘rolling forward’ the current LIP programme
and taking account of ongoing work and completed schemes. New proposals were selected
following site visits and initial investigation to ensure the proposals were practicable, that they
meet Mayor’s Transport Strategy (MTS) goals and the Borough’s transport objectives (Appendix
B) and design standards, represent value for money and would be likely to be acceptable to the
public.

4.2

At the time of preparing the LIP submission report for Local Committees in September 2016,
advice had been received from TfL that there was potentially going to be a 30% reduction in
allocations. Officers, therefore assumed the Council would receive an allocation in the region of
£0.929m, based on the 70% of previous settlement figures. The version of Appendix A
submitted at that time included ‘reserve’ schemes that exceed the £0.929m value, and officers
advised that if the level of funding varied from that anticipated, the additional projects would be
considered. It can now be seen from Appendix A that all the projects that were included in the

Page 111

Agenda Item 12

LIP submission to TfL have been funded.
4.3

TfL have confirmed that a full allocation has been made, and the breakdown of that allocation
across the various funding streams is set out below.

5.

2017/18 LIP Submission

5.1

The Environment and Neighbourhood Committee approved the LIP submission on 14
September 2016 and the Council submitted it to TfL in October 2016.

6.

2017/18 LIP Allocations

6.1

TfL announced the LIP funding allocations for London Boroughs on 16 December 2016. There
are three main LIP programmes as listed in the following paragraphs.

6.2

Programme 1 - Maintenance. TfL funds principal road renewal, bridge strengthening, highway
structures and assessment. There is no preset allocation for maintenance and schemes in this
category are assessed by TfL on merit. TfL commission a survey of the Principal Road network
on a yearly basis to determine the roads that need resurfacing and this allocation is not for local
discretion. An allocation of £0.153m has been made for Principal Road maintenance.

6.3

Programme 2 - Corridors, Neighbourhoods and Supporting Measures. These are holistic
schemes for key ‘Corridors and Neighbourhoods’ which address issues relating to the
smoothing of traffic flow, bus reliability, safety, cycling (including cycle parking and cycle
training), public realm and removal of clutter, local area improvements, including 20 mph zones,
Legible London signage scheme, walking, reduction of street clutter, electric charging points,
travel plans, travel awareness initiatives, freight and delivery issues. As previously indicated in
guidance from TfL issued earlier in the year, TfL has allocated £1.327m for ‘Corridors,
Neighbourhoods and Supporting Measures’, using a needs-based formula (of which £0.168m
relates to revenue schemes). The boroughs funding submission under this programme area will
be funded in full, and the schedule of schemes submitted with the original bid are listed in
Appendix A.

6.4

Programme 3- Major Schemes. This allocation is the continuation funding for the Beddington
Gateways scheme. In terms of this ongoing funding TfL advised that as a result of the recent
business planning round, which resulted in an increased pressure on budgets, all projects within
this programme have been subject to increased financial scrutiny. As a result, and as part of
the settlement, the borough has initially received £0.8m in 17/18, rather than the £1.621m that
was agreed as part of the Step 1 bid. TfL have advised that there is potential for
the outstanding allocation (£0.821m) to be provided in year, to allow the scheme progress in
line with the delivery programme, which will demonstrate a more accurate picture of the delivery
timescales on the ground. However, please note that outstanding £0.821m is currently
earmarked for the 18/19 financial year, so the funding has not been ‘lost’.

6.5

Local Choice (Local Transport Fund). TfL also allocates £0.1m per borough for use on Local

Agenda Item 12

Page 112

Transport Projects of their choice and there is no need to identify schemes as part of the
submission for this funding. This has been allocated to Local Committees on a per capita basis
since it was introduced. Improvements to forward planning would ensure greater value for
money from this allocation and local committees are encouraged to develop three or four year
plans for their areas whilst retaining some flexibility for responding to occasional more pressing
needs.
6.6

Performance. TfL monitor the delivery of outcomes and progress against a set of strategic
indicator targets. The following are mandatory indicators: mode share, bus service reliability,
asset condition, road traffic casualties and carbon dioxide emissions. These indicators support
the Mayor’s overall transport goals. (See Appendix B)

7.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

7.1

TfL provides, through the LIP, financial support for borough schemes intended to improve the
quality, safety and accessibility of the local travelling environment. On 16 December 2016, the
Mayor of London announced the approval of TfL’s 5 year Business Plan, that includes a £1bn
investment in borough programmes over the life of the plan. For 2017/18, LIP funding will be
maintained at £148m with an additional £70m available to support the boroughs to work with TfL
on delivering programmes that have been identified as priorities for London.

7.2

Based on an annual LIP Reporting and Funding Submission by Sutton, the Mayor announced
that for 2017/18 Sutton will receive £2.380m funding from TfL to tackle a range of issues from
reducing road casualties to supporting town centre regeneration and sustainable transport.

7.3

The Capital Programme was approved by full Council on 6 March 2017 which included £2.212m
(£0.153m Maintenance, £1.159m Corridors, Neighbourhoods and Supporting Measures, £0.1m
Local Transport Funding and £0.8m Major Schemes for Beddington Gateway) of funding
allocated by TfL for 2017/18. Agreement is sought to incur Capital Expenditure for the 2017/18
TFL Capital allocation of £2.212m so that schemes can proceed.
Legal

8.2 Under section 159 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999, TfL may give financial assistance
to any body or person in respect of expenditure incurred or to be incurred by that body or
person in doing anything which, in the opinion of TfL, is conducive to the provision of safe,
integrated, efficient and economic transport facilities or services to, from or within Greater
London. The financial assistance that may be given to any London authority under this section
includes in particular assistance in respect of any expenditure incurred, or to be incurred, by the
authority in discharging any function of a highway authority or traffic authority.

Page 113

8.

Agenda Item 12

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

LIP 2017/18 Delivery Plan

B

Mayor’s Transport Strategy outcomes

C

Integrated Impact Assessment

Background documents
TfL LIP Settlement Letter (16/12/16)

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date:17 March 2017

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Tony Cooke

Legal

Yes

David Fellows

Integrated Impact Assessment
required?

Yes

Attached

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 115

Agenda Item 12

Agenda Item 12

Page 116

Page 117

Agenda Item 12

Agenda Item 12

Page 118

Page 119

Agenda Item 12

Agenda Item 12

Page 120

Page 121

Agenda Item 12

Agenda Item 12

Page 122

Page 123

Agenda Item 12

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 125

Agenda Item 12

Agenda Item 12

Page 126

Page 127

Agenda Item 12
Appendix C

Integrated Impact Assessment
Section 1: Aims and demographics
a. Is this a new policy or a review of an existing policy or service?
This is a review of an existing Policy

b. What are the aims and purpose of this proposal?
The aim of this proposal are to advise members of Environments and Neighbourhood
Committee of the level of LIP Funding Settlement, and to seek release of funds to commence
work to delivery Work Programme.

c. Which of the geographic areas does this proposal affect? (insert any specific
wards or state all borough)

The proposal affects the whole borough.

Section 2: Equality and diversity

a.

Which stakeholder group or groups does this proposal affect? (e.g. Staff at
LBS, residents, third and voluntary sector)

It will affect all residents in the borough, as the funding provides opportunities to improve the
highway network across the borough. LBS staff, as well as all other road users will also be
affected by the proposal.

b.

Whose needs is the proposal designed to meet? (e.g. include any specific
impact on protected group members e.g. older people, disabled people, BME)

The proposals are designed to meet the needs of all residents, and the design process for
schemes gives consideration to the needs of vulnerable road users, which includes those
with impairments and mobility issues. Different funding streams are also included to cover a
cross section of age related highway matters.

Agenda Item 12

Page 128
Appendix C

c.

What evidence has been collected to inform this proposal?

The schemes included in the proposal are the result of a range of projects, some of which
are evidence based on accident/collision data and highway condition surveys;; others based
on highway issues raised by residents and Members; and schemes based on input from
educational establishments.
d.

What equality-related information, for example through consultation with
stakeholders, has been gathered on this proposal? (Indicate the type of
information gathered and ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender, age,
religion and sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring
responsibilities. Attach a summary or refer to where the evidence is held.)

No formal or informal consultation with potential applicants (i.e. resident householders) has
been carried out regarding these proposals.

e.

In what ways might the proposal impact positively or negatively on some
groups of people? (Please ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender,
age, religion and sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring
responsibilities.)

It is anticipated that the proposals will have a positive impact on all groups of people, as we
are actively seeking to deal with existing highway related problems.
It is not considered that the proposals will negatively impact on any users of the public
highway.

f.

What will be done to promote equality of opportunity as part of this proposal?

All schemes within the proposal will consider equality issues as part of any design or
development process, and where appropriate schemes will be subject to accessibility and
safety audit processes.

Page 129

Agenda Item 12
Appendix C

Section 3: Health and well being
Please note: Data from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment can be used to fill in this
section of the form, which can be accessed here: h
 ttp://www.suttonjsna.org.uk/
a. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact on the physical
and/or mental wellbeing of residents? If there is a negative impact what action
will be taken to mitigate this? What evidence has been or will be collected?
It is envisaged that the proposals will have a positive impact on the wider public highway
environment, by improving road safety, seeking to improve traffic flow and reduce congestion
-associated with that contribute to air quality improvements.
No specific negative impacts have been identified.
b. In what way could this proposal have a positive or negative impact on an
individual’s opportunity to improve their own health and wellbeing? If there is a
negative impact what action will be taken to mitigate this? What evidence has
or will be collected?
It is anticipated that the proposal will provide the opportunity to encourage road users to
consider the use of alternative modes of travel, particularly by cycling and walking and this
aligns with the council’s Sustainable Transport Strategy.
The council monitor the overall modal travel splits within the borough, and this will continue
to allow an assessment to be made on the level of mode shift.
c. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact
disproportionally on the health and wellbeing of one or more different
communities? (e.g. improve the lives and health of a vulnerable group such as
people with learning disabilities). If there is a negative impact what action will
be taken to mitigate this?
It is not envisaged that the proposal will impact on any specific group any more or less. If
schemes that are introduced are found to have had a negative impact, amendments will be
considered to address those impacts.

Section 4: Local Economy
Is this section relevant to your proposal?

Yes

a. Will this proposal affect the local job market, local business or local inward
investment to the borough?
It is anticipated that the proposal will improve the functioning of the highway network, and
hence offer improved travel conditions to all road users.

Agenda Item 12

Page 130
Appendix C

b. Does this proposal impact upon employment opportunities for residents in
Sutton?
See answer to 4.a

c. Does this proposal provide opportunities for the third sector organisations and
or local businesses in Sutton?
See answer to 4.a

Section 5: Sustainability
Is this section relevant to your proposal?
Yes

Yes

No

a. Is this proposal sustainable medium or long term for improving services in
Sutton?
.
It is anticipated that the proposal will provide both medium and long term improvements for
services in the borough, and is line with the Local Plan.
b. Is this proposal a cost – effective use of resources?
The proposal is a cost-effective use of resource, as these schemes are considered important
to the effective operation of the borough from a transport perspective.

c. If applicable; does this proposal have any impact on the environment and One
Planet Living Principles in Sutton? (e.g. does it impact upon reducing waste,
encourage the use of carbon neutral modes of transport conserve the
environment or encourage the efficient use of water? Please see guidance for
further details if this is relevant to your policy or review).
The proposal includes schemes and proposals that promote the use of sustainable modes of
travel, and are in line with the aspirations of the Sustainable Transport Strategy.

Page 131

Agenda Item 12
Appendix C

Section 6: Actions and Publications

1. Please rate the overall impact identified through this assessment with the
level of action that needs to be taken (delete as appropriate):

a.

What actions are going to be taken as a result of this IIA to address negative
impacts or previously met unidentified needs?

As previously stated, no negative impacts are envisaged in implementing this new
policy.
b.

What data monitoring or evaluation activity has been put into place to monitor
the impact of this proposal?

As previously stated the borough monitor the modal travel choices across the
borough and will continue to do so. The ongoing assessment and monitoring of
accident/collision data remains a high priority. Officers will be assessing ways of
monitoring air quality conditions on the busier parts of the network, along with options
to address the conditions.
c.

Sign- off

Mervyn Bartlett

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 133

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:

Environment and Neighbourhood
Date: 30 March 2017
Committee
Release of Capital Funding for Planned Highway Maintenance in
2017/2018
Mary Morrissey - Strategic Director, Environment Housing and
Regeneration
Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Councillor Jill Whitehead

Open/Exempt:

Open

Signed:

Agenda Item 13

Gary Mersh, Senior Professional Engineer, Highways and Transport,
(020) 8770 6415
● A Green Council

Date:

16 March 2017

1.

Summary

1.1

Valued at over £725m, Sutton Council’s highway network is the most visible, well used and
valuable physical asset which the Council is responsible for. To meet the Council’s corporate
objective of providing a safe and sustainable highway network for businesses, residents and
visitors will require considerable investment in these heavily used highway assets to maintain
them in a serviceable condition. Consequently the highway maintenance needs have been
reviewed, as set out in Appendices A and B and prioritised on a Borough wide basis.

2.

Recommendations

The Environment and Neighbourhood Committee is recommended to:
2.1

Agree to incur capital expenditure of up to £1.2m proposed highway maintenance programme
for footways and carriageways for 2017/18 so that the schedule of works identified under
Appendices A and B can be undertaken.

2.2

Approve the prioritised planned highway maintenance programme for 2017/18, as detailed in
Appendices A and B, with delegation to Warren Shadbolt, Executive Head of Safer and
Stronger Communities, to deal with any in-year changes that may prove necessary.

Agenda Item 13

Page 134

3.

Background

3.1

London Borough of Sutton’s public highway network is the most expensive asset which the
Council owns. It is valued at £725 million and has major significance to borough residents,
communities and businesses.

3.2

A provisional planned highway maintenance programme is drawn up each year from Council
highways inspectors’ safety condition reports, and road condition survey(s). This is coupled with
the level of capital funding available and allows for a list of borough public highway locations
which are in most need of planned maintenance to be put into a works programme.

3.3

All carriageway and footway locations on the provisional planned maintenance list are then
prioritised using a weighting score condition assessment, which takes account the overall
condition and usage of each location and incorporates feedback received from councillors and
members of the public. Within this process, principal roads, bus routes and cycleways receive a
higher priority, as do footways in shopping areas and those close to hospitals, schools and care
homes.

3.4

Due to current capital funding levels there are insufficient funds available to meet the full need
of repair of the borough’s public highway network. As such, officers have to create a prioritised
list, and as a consequence, a backlog of borough roads requiring attention remains.

3.5

The prioritised list of roads is sent to all public utility companies for consultation as required
under the New Roads and Street Works Act (NRSWA) 1991. This allows the utilities to give
notice of their future planned works and provides an opportunity for schemes to be programmed
in to minimise the level of any disruption to the local community.

3.6

Local residents, and transport providers are informed on pending works through an advance
letter drop in the weeks leading up to planned maintenance works taking place. The term
contractor also affixes notices to lamp columns in the days preceding the works to provide
information to highway users, and the bus operators then advise passengers on any diversions
required.

4.

Issues

4.1

Local authorities are now required by HM Treasury to value their transport
assets in line with CIPFA’s Transport Infrastructure Code. The Depreciated Replacement Cost
(DRC) of Sutton’s highway assets is reported as £725 million.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

A selection of planned maintenance methods are used to carry out the works. The choice of the
most appropriate method to be used is dictated by the existing condition and construction of the
highway. Methods range from using materials where a full reconstruction is required (most
expensive option) to thinner surface overlays (cheapest option). The option chosen is designed
to give the greatest longevity to the road at the most economical cost.

Page 135

6.

Agenda Item 13

Impacts and Implications

Financial
6.1

The capital funding proposal is as follows and includes staff costs and contingencies for all
schemes in 2017/18:
Carriageways

Footways

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

700

500

1,200

Agreement is needed by the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee to incur capital
expenditure for the Planned Highway and Pavement Maintenance Programme so that the
schedule of works identified under Appendices A and B can be undertaken during 2017/18
financial year.

Legal
6.2

The Highway Authority has a duty under Section 41 of the Highways Act 1980 to maintain the
highways for which they are responsible.

6.3

If a person believes he/she has suffered damage as a result of a failure to maintain the highway,
the Highways Authority has a defence if it proves that this “had taken such care as in all the
circumstances was reasonably required to secure that the part of the highway to which the
action relates was not dangerous for traffic”.

6.4

Any claim brought against the Council, alleging damage resulting from a breach of their ‘duty’ is
subject to statutory defence under section 58 of The Highway Act 1980. This provides defence
in proof that The Highway Authority had taken such reasonable care as to secure that the
relevant part of the public highway was not dangerous for highway users. In considering the
defence the court is required to have regard to the following matters:(a) The character of the highway, and the traffic reasonably to be expected to use it.
(b) The standard of maintenance appropriate for a highway of that character and used by such
traffic.
(c) The state of repair in which a reasonable person would have expected to find the highway.
(d) Whether the Highway Authority knew, or could have reasonably have been expected to
know that the condition of the relevant highway was likely to cause danger to users of it. By
undertaking a programme of maintenance work prioritised in accordance with the criteria set out
above, and having had regard to Sections 41 and 58 of The Highway Act 1980, the Authority
seeks to perform its statutory duty, and reduce the potential liability for insurance claims.
Community (including safety, localism, public health).

Agenda Item 13

Page 136

6.5

Letter drops to all affected residents/businesses will be carried out by our Contractor 10 working
days in advance of the works commencing, advising them of the arrangements and timescale.

6.6

The current policy for undertaking planned highway works improves public highway user safety
and takes into consideration the need to improve facilities for disabled people, pedestrians,
cyclists and public transport users.

6.7

This aligns with the Council’s corporate plan objective as ‘A Green Council’ to improve the
borough’s transport network infrastructure to support the local economy and meet the current
and future needs of the borough by delivering a programme of works to maintain and repair the
borough’s roads and pavements.

6.8

If the highway network is allowed to deteriorate there will be considerable congestion caused by
increased amounts of emergency responsive maintenance. Officers give careful attention to the
planning and coordination of all highways works to minimise disruption and congestion.

6.9

However, effective maintenance of the Council’s highway assets inevitably entails some impact
to the network and all efforts will be made to give advance notification of implications for local
residents and the general public where their travel arrangements may be disrupted.

6.10 Prior to footway schemes commencing, residents will be given the opportunity to apply for a new
vehicle crossover or extend an existing one, if these requests meet current policies, these works
will be undertaken during the footway improvement scheme. There will be a 15% discount
offered for any applications received. This approach has proved beneficial in the past to all
parties and is critical to ensure the integrity of the new footway is protected and does not incur
any vehicle overrun to access properties.
6.11 Within Conservation areas, every effort is made to ensure that materials match the existing.
The Council’s contractor is required to use vehicles and plant that comply with the European
Union’s requirements. When work has to be carried out at night residents are informed at least
two weeks in advance.
6.12 Works will be scheduled to commence as early in the new financial year as possible. However,
the actual timing of scheme works will be determined and coordinated with other activities, such
as statutory undertakers’ planned works, school holidays and other relevant events as part of
the Council’s network management duties.
6.13 Prolonged periods of very wet, cold or hot weather can have a significant influence on the works
programme and priorities. Additionally, works by statutory undertakers may result in some
schemes needing to be delayed to a later year. In this event, it is proposed that the next road(s)
on the prioritised list would be brought forward for implementation.
Risk
6.14 The failure to fulfil our statutory duty as the Highway Authority would have legal and financial
implications and be potentially harmful to the reputation of the Council.

Page 137

Agenda Item 13

6.15 The highways planned maintenance contract is currently being commissioned for a new fixed
term. Due to this current commissioning process, commencement dates of the programme
cannot be confirmed at this stage.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

List of carriageways to be resurfaced and investigated.

B

List of footways to be reconstructed.

Background documents

None

Audit Trail

Version

Final

Date: 16 March 2017

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Tony Cooke

Legal

Yes

David Fellows

Integrated Impact Assessment
required?

No

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 139

Agenda Item 13

Appendix A
Page 1 of 3

Planned Highways Maintenance

List of carriageways to be resurfaced and Investigated / Design in
2017/18
Roads to be Resurfaced

Road

Length

Ward

225m

Carshalton Central

248m

Beddington North

124m

Beddington North

150m

The Wrythe

403m

Wallington North

GREEN WRYTHE LANE
FROM 240 TO FELLOWS ROAD

498m

St. Helier/The Wrythe

St. NICHOLAS WAY

98m

Sutton Central

PLOUGH LANE
FROM PLOUGH LANE CLOSE TO CROYDON
ROAD

330m

Beddington North

CLIFTON ROAD
FROM BRIDGE ROAD TO MANOR ROAD

147m

Wallington North

WEST STREET
FROM COLSTON AVENUE TO POUND STREET

ROOKWOOD AVENUE
FROM QUEENSWOOD AVENUE TO FERRERS
AVENUE

ROOKWOOD AVENUE
FROM QUEENSWOOD AVENUE TO END

AULTONE WAY, CARSHALTON
WHOLE ROAD

GROSVENOR ROAD
WHOLE ROAD

FROM PEDESTRIAN ISLAND TO St. NICHOLAS ROAD

Page 140

Agenda Item 13

Appendix A
Page 2 of 3

TFL roads to be resurfaced (subject to funding approval by TFL)

Road

Length

Ward

326m

Worcester Park/Nonsuch

94m

Sutton North

Length

Ward

CLIFTON ROAD
FROM BUTE ROAD TO BRIDGE ROAD

188m

Wallington North

COURTNEY CRESCENT
WHOLE ROAD

600m

Carshalton South and Clockhouse

PLOUGH LANE

340m

Beddington South

GREEN LANE (NORTH)
FROM ROSE HILL ROUNDABOUT TO
BOROUGH BOUNDARY

440M

St. Helier

GREEN LANE (SOUTH)
FROM BOROUGH BOUNDARY TO ROSE HILL
ROUNDABOUT

455M

St. Helier

CHEAM COMMON ROAD
FROM LINDSAY ROAD TO COLBORNE WAY

ANGEL HILL
FROM HALLMEAD ROAD TO VERMONT ROAD

Reserve List – LBS Funded

Road

FROM FORRESTERS DRIVE TO BOROUGH
BOUNDARY

Page 141

Agenda Item 13

Appendix A
Page 3 of 3

Reserve List – TFL Funded

Road

Length

Ward

WOODCOTE ROAD
FROM THE DRIVE TO BOROUGH BOUNDARY

769m

Beddington South/Carshalton South
and Clockhouse

BEDDINGTON LANE

391m

Beddington North

HIGH STREET
FROM HALLMEAD ROAD TO VALE ROAD

306m

Sutton North

HILLIERS LANE

240m

Beddington North

FROM COOMBER WAY TO BOROUGH BOUNDARY

FROM GUY ROAD TO CROYDON ROAD

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 143

Agenda Item 13

Appendix B
Page 1 of 2

Planned Highways Maintenance

List of footways to be reconstructed in 2017/18

Road
ALBION ROAD

Length

Ward

352M

Sutton South

325M

Sutton West

229M

Wallington North

342M

Cheam

252M

Cheam/Nonsuch

151M

Beddington South

207M

Carshalton South and Clockhouse

FROM LANGLEY PARK ROAD TO PROSPECT
COURT (SOUTH END)

MULGRAVE ROAD
FROM STANLEY ROAD TO WORCESTER ROAD

DEREK AVENUE
WHOLE ROAD

NORTHEY AVENUE
FROM THE AVENUE TO SANDY LANE

NETLEY CLOSE
WHOLE ROAD

FORESTERS CLOSE
WHOLE ROAD

THE CLOSE
WHOLE ROAD

Page 144

Agenda Item 13

Appendix B
Page 2 of 2

Reserve List of footways to be reconstructed in 2017/18

Road
THE CHASE

Length

Ward

455M

Beddington North/South

387M

Stonecot

810M

Worcester Park

451M

Worcester Park

191M

Worcester Park/Nonsuch

430M

Carshalton South and Clockhouse

687M

Beddington North

224M

Wallington North

FROM CENTRAL AVENUE TO STAFFORD ROAD
– NORTH SIDE ONLY

WILLOW WALK.
WHOLE ROAD

BOSCOMBE ROAD
WHOLE ROAD

CHARMINSTER ROAD
WHOLE ROAD

WOODBINE LANE
WHOLE ROAD

WAVERLEY WAY
WHOLE ROAD

WEST AVENUE
WHOLE ROAD

HARCOURT FIELD
WHOLE ROAD

